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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE
MARKET (THE “GEM”) OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE
OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to
accommodate companies to which a higher investment
risk may be attached than other companies listed on the
Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware
of the potential risks of investing in such companies and
should make the decision to invest only after due and
careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other
characteristics of the GEM mean that it is a market more
suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on the GEM,
there is a risk that securities traded on the GEM may be
more susceptible to high market volatility than securities
traded on the main board of the Stock Exchange and no
assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the
securities traded on the GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the
Stock Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of
this report, make no representation as to its accuracy or
completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever
for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the
whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of KVB
Kunlun Financial Group Limited (the “Company”) collectively and
individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given
in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the GEM for the purpose of giving information with regard
to the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable
enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge and belief
the information contained in this report is accurate and complete
in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive, and
there are no other matters the omission of which would make
any statement herein or this report misleading.
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STATEMENT FROM THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Dear shareholders:

On behalf of Board of directors (the “Directors”) of KVB Kunlun
Financial Group Limited (the “Company”, together with its
subsidiaries, the “Group”), | am pleased to present to the
audited consolidated results of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2014 to our shareholders and investors.

2014 is the second year since the Company was successfully
listed on Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited. To strengthen listing compliance, thereby
further consolidate the listing status, increase results and
steadily push forward the set strategic goal has become the
key performance indicators (KPI) of the listed groups in 2014.

The Group’s total revenue has increased from approximately
HK$177 million in 2013 to approximately HK$189 million in
2014, up about 6.7%. The Group recorded an annual profit of
approximately HK$35 million in 2014. It is worth mentioning
that the global foreign exchange market experienced market
conditions with the historically lowest volatility in the first half of
2014. Such market sentiment reduced trading intentions of the
Group’s customers, which adversely affected the Group’s foreign
exchange brokerage business due to lower trading volume. The
entire market conditions got improved since the third quarter
and reached a moderate volatile market condition with the U.S
announcement of its exit from QE3 and sharp decline in bulk
commodities and non-US currencies in the fourth quarter, the
Group firmly grasped the market conditions for a short period
in the last quarter, successfully turning losses into a profits,
proving the ability of the Group’s core trading department to
grasp market conditions and achieve profits again.

Amid the conditions that the profits were turned to losses in
the first half of 2014, the management of the Group withstood
pressure from costs and made investment in employee share
options, forex star system-related information technology, market
brand, marketing and other aspects, which added the positive
elements to the future business development of the Group.

At the time | wrote 2014 annual report, two major events that
inherit the past and usher in the future are worthwhile to be
presented to shareholders. Firstly, the Company issued various
announcements dated from 11 November 2014 to 26 February
2015, introducing CITIC Securities to become the strategic
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STATEMENT FROM THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

TR

controlling shareholder. Secondly, on the transition from the
old year to the new year for the first quarter in 2015, the Swiss
franc exchange rate cliff black swan event caused a huge
shock against the global foreign exchange industry while we
fully managed to ride on this storm. Such two major events have
highlighted the Group’s core competitiveness, thereby once
again proving the aggressiveness of the Group in strategic
deployment and development and efficiency and pragmatism
in risk management and control.

Looking to the future, even though the timeframe is difficult
to be predicted, we remain confident. | expect that there will
be various driving forces driving opportunities for the future
development and increased revenues of the Group. From a
macro perspective, this includes the new wave of internet finance
and China’s financial reform with exchange rate marketization
taken as the core goal. China’s offshore finance development
as one of new factors for global economic growth will drive our
overseas business needs to a great extent. In these predictable
megatrends, the Group is relatively in a favorable position, and
will eventually benefit from the prior deployment and experience
accumulation in terms of market, business models, information
technology and other aspects.

The successful introduction of CITIC Securities as the strategic
controlling shareholder is an effective decision to maximize
interests of all shareholders of the listed group, as well as the
best choice from the perspective of the Company’s employees
and customers; after the merger and acquisition, we can fully
expect that CITIC Securities as one of the most progressive and
globalized leading full-fledged securities services company in
China will provide rich strategic resources and support for the
listed group. Leveraging on the powerful resources platform
and network advantages of CITIC Securities, the Group will
accelerate market deployment to a more extensive scale,
develop different financial products and services, thereby fully
grasping the opportunities from the future foreign exchange
markets and bringing higher returns for shareholders.

Liu Stefan
Chief executive officer and executive director

Hong Kong, 31 March 2015
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Board is pleased to present the audited consolidated results
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014, together
with the audited comparative figures for the corresponding year
in 2013.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
Business review

During the first eight months of 2014, the market was quiet and
volatility hit historically low levels, while in the last four months
of the year, due to economic and geopolitical factors, the market
volatility rose significantly. The gold price was trading in the
range of approximately US$1,393/ounce to below US$1,130/
ounce. The AUD/USD dropped from 0.95 to 0.77 during the year,
the lowest level since 2009. The EUR/USD dropped from 1.4 to
1.2 during the year; the unexpected large market volatility in
the last four months has boosted the profit margin of the margin
leveraged foreign trading business of the Group.

During the year under review, the Group launched a marketing
campaign to expand its local market share in addition to its well-
developed referral client base over the past years. Furthermore,
the Group put in additional resources in marketing development
after listing. As a result, the number of clients increased by
36.1% for the year under review compared with the year ended
31 December 2013.

During the year under review, the Group launched China
Stock Index 300 (“CSI300”) and Australia Stock Market Index
(“Aussie200”) and one new commodity under leveraged
trading, namely Copper contracts for difference (“CFD”). A
new currency pair “USDCNH” was also added to our currency
trading list. This is in line with the market trend that investors
invest in commodities and stock markets and currencies in a
way to safeguard the value of their wealth. The net deposit of
the margin leveraged trading clients of the Group has been
increased 26.8% compared with the year ended 31 December
2013. This has also enhanced the Group’s leveraged margin
trading profitability.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Total income

The total income of the Group increased by approximately
6.7% to approximately HK$188.6 million for the year ended 31
December 2014 from approximately HK$176.7 million for the
year ended 31 December 2013.

A. Leveraged foreign exchange and other trading income

The leveraged foreign exchange and other trading
income of the Group increased by approximately 6.4%
to approximately HK$144.2 million for the year ended
31 December 2014 from approximately HK$135.5 million
for the year ended 31 December 2013. This is mainly
due to the higher trading volume during the year ended
31 December 2014 as compared to the year ended 31
December 2013.

B. Cash dealing income

The cash dealing income of the Group increased by
approximately 44.6% from approximately HK$11.5 million
for the year ended 31 December 2013 to HK$16.6 million
for the year ended 31 December 2014. The increase
was mainly attributable to the higher transaction volume
for market maker hedge and natural hedge in the cash
dealing service business.

C. Other income

Other income of the Group decreased by approximately
6.3% to approximately HK$27.8 million for the year ended
31 December 2014 from approximately HK$29.7 million
for the year ended 31 December 2013.

The fees and commission income of the Group decreased
from approximately HK$26.5 million for the year ended 31
December 2013 to approximately HK$23.7 million for the year
ended 31 December 2014. The major component of fees and
commission was the commission charged to the referred clients
from leveraged forex and dealing counterparties based on the
trading volume. The decrease was mainly due to the decrease
in charging commission to clients referred by referrer parties
during the year under review compared with the year ended 31
December 2013.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group recorded
an exchange gain of approximately HK$0.02 million while there
was an exchange loss of approximately HK$1.4 million during
the year ended 31 December 2013. This was mainly due to the
period-end translation of monetary assets denominated in foreign
currency into local reporting currency by KVB Kunlun New
Zealand Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

The management fee income of the Group decreased to
approximately HK$2.0 million for the year ended 31 December
2014 from approximately HK$2.5 million for the year ended
31 December 2013. This is mainly due to the Group no longer
receiving management fee income from KVB Kunlun Holdings
Limited and its subsidiaries which do not belong to the Group
(collectively, the “Non-Listed Group”) as a result of further
business separation from the Non-Listed Group.

Fees and commission expenses

The fees and commission expenses of the Group increased by
approximately 5.8% to approximately HK$61.1 million for the
year ended 31 December 2014 from approximately HK$57.8
million for the year ended 31 December 2013. The increase was
mainly due to the increase in trading volume of the clients of the
Group referred by referral parties.

Staff costs

The staff cost of the Group increased by approximately 18.6% to
approximately HK$36.5 million for the year ended 31 December
2014 from approximately HK$30.8 million for the year ended 31
December 2013. The increase was mainly due to staff share
option expenses recorded.

Depreciation and amortization

Depreciation and amortization increased by approximately
23.1% to approximately HK$3.1 million for the year ended 31
December 2014 from approximately HK$2.6 million for the year
ended 31 December 2013. The increase was mainly due to the
upgrade of our online trading platform and the newly capitalized
office equipment and leasehold improvements for the period
under review.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Lease payments under land and buildings

Lease payments under land and buildings increased by
approximately 10.0% to approximately HK$6.5 million for the
year ended 31 December 2014 from approximately HK$5.9
million for the year ended 31 December 2013 this was mainly
due to rent increase of the Beijing office and rent increase in
Sydney & Melbourne office due to lease renewal in July & June
2014 with an increase in rent.

Administrative and other operating expenses

The administrative and other operating expenses of the Group
increased by approximately 14.2% to approximately HK$33.6
million for the year ended 31 December 2014 from approximately
HK$29.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2013. This
increase was primarily due to the increase in marketing
expenses by approximately HK$2.2 million during the year
ended 31 December 2014 as compared with the year ended
31 December 2013 as the result of new marketing channels
development.

Net profit and net profit margin

For the reasons set forth above, the Group achieved net profit of
approximately HK$35.1 million for the year ended 31 December
2014 compared with the net profit of approximately HK$34.8
million for the year ended 31 December 2013. The net profit
margin for the year ended 31 December 2014 was approximately
18.6%.

In summary, the increase in profitability of the Group was
primarily contributed by:

° higher trading volume resulting in higher leverage foreign
exchange trading income in the last four months;

° higher transaction volume for market maker hedge and
natural hedge resulting in higher cash dealing income.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

During the period under review, the operations of the Group
have been financed principally by equity capital, cash generated
by the Group’s business operations and the cash and bank
deposits.

GEARING RATIO

The gearing ratio calculated on the basis of net debts (financial
lease obligation and amounts due to fellow subsidiaries) over
the total shareholders’ fund as at 31 December 2014 was
approximately 0.15% (2013: 0.13%).

FOREIGN CURRENCY EXPOSURE

During the year under review, the Group recorded an exchange
gain of approximately HK$0.02 million (2013: approximately
loss of HK$1.4 million). This was mainly due to the month-
end translation of monetary assets denominated in foreign
currency into local reporting currency by the subsidiary of the
Group in New Zealand. The main contributor to this result was
the appreciation of USD and the exchange rate of USD/NZD
changed from approximately 1.2165 as at 31 December 2013
to 1.2758 as at 31 December 2014.

The foreign currency risk is managed proactively by regular
review of the currency positions in the basket of currency mix.
In order to minimize the exposure of the Group to risk, the Group
has hedge strategy based on prevailing market conditions and
working capital requirements of sub-companies.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

During the year under review, the capital structure of the Group
consists of cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable
to owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital and
reserves.

NEW PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

The Group launched a China Stock Index 300 (“CSI300"),
Australia Stock Market Index (“Aussie200”) and one new
commodity under leveraged trading, namely Copper contracts
for difference (“CFD”). A new currency pair “USDCNH” was
also added to the Group currency trading list during the year
under review.
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SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES
DURING THE PERIOD UNDER REVIEW

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group did not
have any material acquisitions and disposals.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2014, the Group engaged a total of 64
employees (2013: a total of 55). Total staff costs including
Directors’ remuneration for the period under review amounting
to approximately HK$36.5 million (2013: HK$30.8 million). The
Group’s remuneration policies are in line with the prevailing
market practices and are determined on the basis of performance

and experience of individual employees.

The Group provides retirement benefits in accordance with the
relevant laws and regulations in the place where the staff is
employed.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme pursuant to
which the Directors and employees of the Group are entitled to
participate.

CHARGES ON THE GROUP’S ASSETS AND
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2014, certain bank balances of the Group
amounting to approximately HK$45.5 million were used to secure
the banking facilities and the offices lease bonds.

As at 31 December 2014, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR
CAPITAL ASSETS

The future investment plans of the Group are detailed in the
sub-section headed “Business objectives and future plans”
in the prospectus of the Company dated 11 June 2013 (the
“Prospectus”).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

We plan to:

1. expand operations in the worldwide overseas Chinese
and Japanese communities;

2. increase in the range of our financial services and
products;

3. further upgrade our online trading platform; and

4. strategically grow through mergers and acquisitions.

The source of funding for these investment plans is from the net
proceeds of the Placing of approximately HK$125.3 million. Our
Directors presently intend that the net proceeds will be applied
as follows:
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The new PRC subsidiary located in Zhuhai City Hengqgin New
District has been set up and the Group is expecting further
progress in this new subsidiary in the coming year. The Group
will continuously conduct studies on identifying hot spots to
develop new branches or subsidiaries; and perform market
studies to explore commercial viability for new products.

During the year under review, the Group had developed new
financial services and products through internally generated
funding.

The Group spent HK$6.3 million in 2014 to revamp the network
in order to keep on improving the efficiency, security, availability
and manageability of the online trading platform.
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DIRECTORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND COMPANY SECRETARY

The biographical details in respect of the directors (the
“Directors”) and the senior management of KVB Kunlun Financial
Group Limited (the “Company”, together with its subsidiaries, the
“Group”) as at the date of this report are as follows:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. LIU Stefan (2IfR##5L4), aged 48, is the chief executive
officer of the Company. He is also a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Liu is one of the responsible
officers of KVB Kunlun International (HK) Limited (“KVB HK”)
and is also a director of KVB Kunlun Holdings Limited (“KVB
Holdings”) and certain subsidiaries of KVB Holdings which do
not belong to the Group.

Mr. Liu was appointed the managing director of the Group in
March 2006 and the country manager of New Zealand and
Australia in August 2011. He was appointed as a Director of the
Company on 9 November 2010 and is responsible for the overall
management and strategic development of the Group.

Before joining the Group, Mr. Liu served as the managing
director of Aiming International (New Zealand) Co. Limited from
August 1997 to August 2001 and was responsible for fostering
the development plan, structuring investment direction and
strategy, liaising and maintaining relationships with business
partners and searching for and maintaining public relationship
with potential strategic investors.

With his previous and current positions in the Group and other
companies, Mr. Liu has obtained over 12 years of experience in
the forex market which is relevant to the management, operation
and development of the Group. Mr. Liu obtained his bachelor’s
degree in arts from the Tianjin Foreign Studies University (K&
SNEFEAER) in July 1989.

Mr. NG Chee Hung Frederick (=554 ), aged 59, joined the
Group in August 2006 and has been an executive director of
KVB HK since June 2009. Mr. Ng is responsible for managing
the operations of KVB HK and the treasury and dealing functions
of the Group. Mr. Ng is also the executive director and one
of the responsible officers of each of KVB HK and certain
subsidiaries of KVB Holdings which do not belong to the Group.
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Mr. Ng is also a director of each of LXL Capital IV Limited,
LXL Capital VIII Limited, LXL Capital IX Limited, LXL Capital
V Limited and Yorkastle Capital Limited. Mr. Ng has over 30
years of experience in the financial services industry. Before
joining the Group, Mr. Ng had worked at corporations in Hong
Kong, Toronto, Tokyo, Singapore and Shanghai. From 2002 to
2006, Mr. Ng was the managing partner of Quantitative Asset
Management Group which was engaged in asset management
and he was responsible for managing and overseeing daily
operations including all trade execution and reconciliation. From
June 1992 to January 2002, Mr. Ng was employed with Credit
Agricole Group (a banking group based in France) and served
in various positions including vice president and regional forex
manager — North Asia, senior vice president and head of forex
trading hub - Asia, treasurer — China, and head of sales of
Greater China and assistant general manager of capital markets.
From October 1978 to January 1992, Mr. Ng was employed
with the Royal Bank of Canada and last held the position of
forex manager. Mr. Ng is a member of the Institute of Public
Accountants, Australia and a certified member of the Institute
of Certified Management Accountants, Australia. Mr. Ng was
appointed as a Director on 15 April 2011.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. LI Zhi Da (FEiE%E), aged 61,
board of Directors. Mr. Li is one of the founders of the Group

is the chairman of the

and one of the controlling shareholders of the Company. Mr. Li
was a director of each of KVB Kunlun New Zealand Limited and
KVB HK since their respective incorporation until May 2009 and
June 2009, respectively. Mr. Li is also a director of each of KVB
Holdings, LXL Capital | Limited and LXL Capital Il Limited. Mr.
Li was the legal representative of a private company engaged
in the business of production and sales of cosmetics in the
PRC, including the brand “Mininurse”. Since the disposal of the
cosmetics business in December 2003, Mr. Li has diversified his
investments into other business areas including tourism business
in the PRC. Mr.
management from the Zhejiang University (/L XZ) in March

Li obtained his master’s degree in project

1994. Mr. Li was appointed as a Director on 30 August 2011.
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Mr. Stephen Gregory McCOY, aged 62, joined the Group in
October 2006 as the senior manager of operations and was
later appointed the country manager of Australia in 2008. Mr.
McCoy is also a director of KVB Kunlun Pty Ltd and LXL Capital
[l Limited. Mr. McCoy is also a director of other subsidiaries of
KVB Holdings which do not belong to the Group. Before joining
the Group, Mr. McCoy worked at Arab Bank Australia Limited as
an internal auditor from May 2002 to December 2003 and later
as the head of operations from January 2004 to October 2006
and was responsible for managing the operations department of
the bank including treasury settlements, retail operations, loan
administration, office administration, trade finance and product
compliance in line with regulatory authorities and policies and
procedures of the bank and before that, Mr. McCoy worked at
Westpac Banking Corporation for over 30 years from February
1969 to April 2001 and last held the position of manager of
operational risk. With the previous and current positions held
by Mr. McCoy in the Group and other companies, Mr. McCoy
has obtained over 42 years of combined experience in the
financial services industry which is relevant to the operation
and development of the Group. Mr. McCoy was appointed as a
Director on 15 April 2011.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. ZHAO Guixin (f#£2 % T), aged 51, joined the Group in
April 2011. From June 2005 to July 2007, Ms. Zhao worked at
REEEIR
&2 R AR A7) which was engaged in property and investment
and she was responsible for providing consultation services in

Tianjin Jiandu Investment & Development Co. Ltd. (

project financing, cooperation in public affairs and international
investment matters. From May 2003 to August 2007, Ms. Zhao
also provided consultation services in finance and investment
related matters to Tianjin Wanhe Investment & Development Co.
Ltd. (REEFK E R BRR A F)) which was engaged in property
and investment. From July 2001 to October 2003, Ms. Zhao was
appointed the general manager of the audit department of China
Citic Bank, Tianjin branch and was responsible for managing
the overall performance of the audit department, implementing
policies and procedures and other management work. Ms. Zhao
has over 22 years of experience in accounting and auditing
matters including but not limited to financial analysis, financial
management, asset management, assessment and auditing of

EH - RARE A R AR E

Stephen Gregory McCOY%4% ' 625% * IAZF
= /\¢+HJJD)\ZK'§ITJ*E EBE ERKLIE - H
BRZZETNFEZERBRMNEIGLLE - McCoy
S HEIRABKVB Kunlun Pty Ltd%LXL Capital Il
LimitedM)E = - McCoy L £ M B EMTBR A
S @ EKVB Ho|dingsﬂ1¢%®ﬂm§$ ° ﬂu)\$
SEA - McCoyt ER_TE_FHAZE
=§+=H EArab Bank Australia leltedeé

FRARZEE  BEER-ZSENF—RAE-_ZEZT
/\EJrﬁﬁE%iE‘BEA BEERRTEE
BRFT - ’F]%ﬁﬁ?ﬁ‘ CEEER ERER-
THERE - %rﬂﬁ&@ﬁ: B(FEEEHR
%L‘A&ﬁﬁﬁﬂl ENRIEFEVRE) - AL Z Al
McCoy et ER — N ANFZRAZ=_FTZT—FIN

B ¥Westpac Banking Corporation{EB#E1304F
NEEk BT ERBRACIE B - JREMcCoyt £
SR RN AEE REAM A B TEEORS -
McCoyﬁEEﬁéﬁf’%$’§lME&§*F’E’J%%ﬁ‘iﬁlﬁﬁ&
ITREREI2FHEEER - McCoyt AR
——FNA+HRBAEZTAES -

BYFHITES

HERzL 51K R_T——FHANMALXSE
B HALTER_ETRAFAAE_TTLF L
ABMBERZEZMEEZRARRA (REYWHE
RRE) EB - aERHBEERE  AHEKA
ERBERIREER T mAOEARS - B L IR
“ER=FRAE_ZETLF)\ABERKXES
MEEHRRERAR (KEVEEKE) S
%ﬁ&&ﬁ*@?ﬂ%lﬁﬁﬁmﬂﬁﬁ% R-BE— it
AZ_ZT=F1+H BLRLEZER/TERTT
RED ﬁ%afﬁ%@%@% AR EEEBMINE

BRE  BERBERIEFUAREMERIE -8
LR (BRETRR) BB MiEER -
BEEE  HERBRMBRRARZ B K

B ARTEHBEB2FE KRBT LR - HL
TR —NANF+ = A A R 2R AR
KERERERE - BZESR—HAANLENA
ERERAASHASNEFEERRE TR
— 4%+ A#%5The Flinders University of South



KVB KUNLUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED [ iy [20 [ <& fil 4 B A7 PR A W)

DIRECTORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND COMPANY SECRETARY

EH - R BLE R AR E

financial positions and involvement in financial and auditing
decision making process. Ms. Zhao completed the course in
economics and management organised by the Party School of
Central Committee of the Communist Party of China (FF &R E
) in December 1996. Ms. Zhao further completed the course
in business administration organised by Nankai University (F
FAE) in September 1999 and obtained her master’s degree
in arts in international relations in economy and trade from The
Flinders University of South Australia in October 2002. Ms. Zhao
was assessed and awarded the qualification of accountant by
the Tianjin branch of the Bank of China in 1992. Ms. Zhao was
appointed as a Director on 15 April 2011.

Mr. Cornelis Jacobus KEYSER, aged 57, first joined the Group
in December 2003 as a senior consultant. In June 2005, he
was appointed as the joint Group managing director (group
operations and treasury) and managing director (designate
proposed banking division) and held that position until he
left the Group in April 2008. Since March 2003, Mr. Keyser
has been a director of Keyser Merchant & Capital Finance
(New Zealand) Limited which is engaged in the provision of
consultation services and he is responsible for managing all
aspects of such company and acts as a consultant. From July
1999 to August 2002, Mr. Keyser held the position of group
treasurer to Gensec Ltd. and Gensec Bank. From September
1996 to March 1997, Mr. Keyser worked at the Swabou Building
Society Group of Companies as the group managing director
and was responsible for the operations of the group. From May
1990 to August 1992, Mr. Keyser was appointed the managing
director of Keyser Trading (Pty) Limited and from September
1992 to June 1999, he was appointed the managing director of
Keyser Merchant and Capital Finance (Pty) Limited. Mr. Keyser
is @ member of the Institute of Directors in New Zealand Inc.
Mr. Keyser has over 22 years of experience in the financial
industry. Mr. Keyser obtained his bachelor’s degree in industrial
psychology, his honours degree in economics and his master’s
degree in economics from the Rand Afrikaans University in April
1981, April 1982 and April 1983, respectively. Mr. Keyser was
appointed as a Director on 15 April 2011.
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Mr. LIN Wenhui (X255 4), aged 37, joined the Group in July
2011. Mr. Lin has been an audit manager of Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu in Beijing since September 2011. With effect from
1 July 2014, Mr. Lin is temporarily transferred to the Board of
Supervisors of SAC in the State Council for the inspection of
enterprises directly under the central government. From April
2009 to September 2011, Mr. Lin was a manager of RSM China
Certified Public Accountants (FimEESHAISELFT). Mr. Lin
served as a project manager in the taxation and accounting
services department of Reanda Certified Public Accountants (7
ZESHMEBEARETAQR) from September 2004 to March
2006 and a manager assistant in the audit department of the
same firm from April 2006 to December 2008. From August 2002
to September 2004, Mr. Lin worked in the accounting department
of the head company of the Beijing Shougang Oxygen Plant
(At mEiERM) which was engaged in the production and
sales of oxygen and other gases for industrial enterprises.
Mr. Lin obtained his bachelor’'s degree in accounting from the
Harbin University of Commerce (FMBREREZEARE) in July 2002.
Mr. Lin obtained his certificate of accounting professional from
the Finance Bureau of Beijing (3tRWE /D) in June 2003
and passed the PRC’s national accounting examinations and
was awarded the certificate issued by the Committee of the
Registered Accountant Examination of the Ministry of Finance
(B M e st Z R Z 8 €) in April 2005. Mr. Lin has been a
member of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants
recognised by the Ministry of Finance of the PRC (fF # AR N
B 81 L ER) since April 2008. Mr. Lin was appointed as a Director
on 16 July 2011.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. WONG Yiu Kit, Ernest (2% %c4) is the Chief Financial
Officer and the Company Secretary of the Company. Mr.
Wong has extensive experience in venture capital, corporate
finance, business development, legal, IT, financial and general
management. Mr. Wong is now the President and Group Chief
Financial Officer of KVB Kunlun Holdings Limited. Previously he
was the Executive Director and Chief Financial Officer of China
Private Equity Investment Holdings Limited which is listed on
London AIM market. He was in charge of the private equity
investment, portfolio management, corporate finance activities
including fund raising and initial public offering, financial
management, legal services, IT and company secretarial
work. Before that, Mr. Wong was the Chief Financial Officer
for Hong Kong Applied Science and Technology Research
Institute Company Limited (“ASTRI”) and held management
responsibilities for its overall financial, legal, IT, business
development and corporate finance functions. Before joining
ASTRI, Mr. Wong was the vice president for Vertex Management
Pte Ltd (now known as Vertex Venture Holdings Ltd), focusing
in venture investment in communications, IT and electronics
sectors. Previously, he also held management positions at
Guangdong Investment Ltd., Transpac Capital Limited and
Accenture.

Mr. Wong earned his Bachelor of Business Administration
degree from the University of Hong Kong, received his Master
of Science in investment management from the Hong Kong
University of Science and Technology and Master of Science
in Electronic Engineering from the Chinese University of Hong
Kong. Mr. Wong is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants, United Kingdom; and is an associate
member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England
and Wales. He is also a charter-holder of Chartered Financial
Analyst, United States of America and a member of the Hong
Kong Security Institute.
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DIRECTORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND COMPANY SECRETARY

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. ZHANG Rongjun (5R&F 2z +) is the regional financial
controller of New Zealand and Australia of the Group. Ms. Zhang
joined the Group in December 2002 as the financial controller.
Ms. Zhang has also been a director of KVB NZ since May
2009. From December 1997 to July 2002, Ms. Zhang served
as a senior accountant at HWI Limited Chartered Accountants
and was responsible for preparing financial statements and
tax returns and providing tax advice. Ms. Zhang has over 16
years of experience in accounting matters in New Zealand. Ms.
Zhang obtained her bachelor’s degree in accounting from the
Unitec Institute of Technology in April 2000. Ms. Zhang has
been a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of New
Zealand since January 2002.

Mr. HUANG Songyuan (ZMJRJL4) is the director of global
margin business. Mr. Huang is also responsible for the
management of investment business of the Group, including
foreign exchange, commodities and equities business. He is
currently one of the responsible officers of KVB HK and KVB AU,
and a director and managing principal of KVB NZ. Mr. Huang
joined the Group in August 2002 as an executive accountant
of KVB NZ and was responsible for general accounting duties,
book-keeping and financial reports. Mr. Huang was the manager
of treasury strategy of KVB NZ and was responsible for the
implementation of its dealing system and the day-to-day running
of its global forex dealing operations and all its associated
financial management. Mr. Huang obtained his bachelor’s
degree in accounting from the Sun Yat-Sen University (FF 1L KE2)
in June 1999, his master’s degree in international business from
the Auckland Institute of Studies at St. Helens, New Zealand in
December 2000 and his graduate diploma in commerce from
the University of Auckland in May 2002. Mr. Huang became a
chartered financial analyst of the CFA Institute in September
2006.
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EH - R BLE R AR E

Mr. SO Chi Hang Stephen (358 52 4E) is the head of investment
of KVB AU. Mr. So joined the Group in May 2003 as a senior
sales executive of margin forex of KVB AU. He has been the
Responsible Manager (RM) of the Australian Financial Services
License (AFSL) for the company since then. Mr. So is at present
a director of KVB AU. Before joining the Group, Mr. So worked
at The Hong Kong Chinese Bank, Limited and Lippo Securities
Holdings Limited from March 1994 to December 2002 and was
responsible for providing investment advice and dealing with
private clients and retail clients, first as a senior investment
consultant in The Hong Kong Chinese Bank, Limited and
thereafter as a senior manager of the global investment division
of Lippo Securities Holdings Limited. Mr. So has over 18 years
of experience in advising clients on financial products ranging
from securities, indices and stock futures and options to other
financial products. Mr. So obtained his bachelor of arts degree
from the University of Sydney, Australia in April 1992. Mr. So
also obtained the diploma in financial services issued by the
Australian Financial Markets Association in 2003.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

KVB Kunlun Financial Group Limited (the “Company”, together
with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) is committed to high standards
of corporate governance in the interest of its shareholders. It
has continued and will continue to identify and adopt the best
corporate governance practices appropriate to the Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Company has
complied with the code provisions set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “Code”) contained in the Appendix 15
to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Growth
Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “GEM Listing Rules”).

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company adopted the required standard of dealings as set
out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules as the code
of conduct regarding securities transactions in securities of the
Company by the directors of the Company (the “Directors”).

Having made specific enquiry with the Directors, all the Directors
confirmed that they had complied with the required standard of
dealings during the year ended 31 December 2014.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The board of Directors (the “Board”) is responsible for the
formulation of strategies and policies, including an oversight
of the management. The management of the Company is
responsible for the day-to-day operations of the Company under
the leadership of the chief executive officer.

As at 31 December 2014, the Board comprised seven Directors,
including (i) two executive Directors, namely Mr. Liu Stefan (as
chief executive officer) and Mr. Ng Chee Hung Frederick; (ii) two
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Li Zhi Da and Mr. Stephen
Gregory McCoy; and (iii) three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Ms. Zhao Guixin, Mr. Cornelis Jacobus Keyser
and Mr. Lin Wenhui. One of the independent non-executive
Director, namely Mr. Lin Wenhui, has appropriate professional
qualifications, or accounting or related financial management
expertise.
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Each executive Director has entered into a service agreement
with the Company for a specific term, and his term of office is
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election in accordance
with the articles of association of the Company and the GEM
Listing Rules. For all non-executive Directors and independent
non-executive Directors, the term of them has been fixed at 3
years and is also subject to retirement by rotation and re-election
in accordance with the articles of association of the Company
and the GEM Listing Rules.

In determining the independence of independent non-executive
Directors, the Board has followed the requirements set out in
the GEM Listing Rules. The Company has received from each of
the independent non-executive Directors an annual confirmation
of independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing
Rules. Based on such confirmation, the Company is of the view
that all the independent non-executive Directors have met the
independence guidelines set out in Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing
Rules and considers that they are independent.

The Company continuously seeks to enhance the effectiveness
of the Board and to maintain the highest standards of corporate
governance and recognises and embraces the benefits of
diversity in the boardroom. The Board has therefore adopted
a board diversity policy which stated that the Board sees
diversity as a wide concept and believes that a diversity of
perspectives can be achieved through consideration of a
number of factors, including but not limited to skills, regional
and industry experience, background, race, gender and other
qualities. In informing its perspective on diversity, the Company
will also take into account factors based on its own business
model and specific needs from time to time.

The Company endeavours to ensure that the Board has the
appropriate balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives that are required to support the execution of its
business strategy and in order for the Board to be effective.

Board appointments will continue to be made on a merit basis
and candidates will be considered against objective criteria,
with due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board. The
Board believes that such merit-based appointments will best
enable the Company to serve its clients, shareholders and other
stakeholders going forward.
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Pursuant to the code provision A.2.1 of the Code, the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual. The chairman of
the Board is responsible for the leadership and effective running
of the Board, and for ensuring that all key and appropriate issues
are discussed by the Board in a timely and constructive manner,
while the chief executive officer of the Company, supported
by other members of the Board and the senior management,
is responsible for the day-to-day management of the Group’s
business, including the implementation of major strategies and
initiatives adopted by the Group. As at 31 December 2014,
the roles of the chairman of the Board and the chief executive
officer are by Mr. Li Zhi Da, a non-executive Director, and Mr.
Liu Stefan, an executive Director, respectively.

Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company, at
each annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors for
the time being, or, if their number is not three or a multiple of
three, then the number nearest to but not less than one-third,
shall retire from office by rotation provided that every Director,
including those appointed for a specific term, shall be subject
to retirement by rotation at least once every three years. A
retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election. A circular which
includes the biographical details of the retiring Directors who
stand for re-election together with the notice of annual general
meeting of the Company will be despatched to the shareholders
of the Company in due course.

The Board meets regularly and at least four times a year of
approximately quarterly intervals. Between scheduled meetings,
senior management of the Company from time to time meets with
Directors to discuss the businesses of the Group. In addition,
Directors have full access to information on the Group and
independent professional advice whenever deemed necessary
by the Directors.
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During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Board held six HZE-ZT—NF+_A=+—HALFE EFg
board meetings and the Company held one general meeting, BT T RNAEZESEEH  AARERTT AR
and the attendance records of these meetings are set out below: R AE @ ZEE@ZHBOHEFEFOT
Attendance Attendance
(for Board (for general
meetings) meetings)
HiE HE
(BE=ggR) (BREXE)
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Liu Stefan RRFE LA 6/6 1/1
Mr. Ng Chee Hung Frederick REE A 6/6 11
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Mr. Li Zhi Da FHESRE 4/6 1/1
Mr. Stephen Gregory McCoy Stephen Gregory McCoy 4t 4 6/6 1/1
Independent non-executive Directors B IEHITESE
Ms. Zhao Guixin ZEEL S 5/6 1/1
Mr. Cornelis Jacobus Keyser Cornelis Jacobus Keyserft & 6/6 1/1
Mr. Lin Wenhui MBSk AE 5/6 1/1
There is no relationship (including financial, business, familyor ZE @8 M ETMNEE (BEVE - %

material/relevant relationship(s)) among members of the Board.

DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS TRAINING AND
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Pursuant to the code provision A.6.5 of the Code, all Directors
should participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills so as to ensure
their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.
The Company should be responsible for arranging and funding
suitable training, placing an appropriate emphasis on the roles,
functions and duties of the Director.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Company has
arranged an in-house seminar for the Directors on the topics
of (i) Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance
Report; and (ii) Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting
Guide. All Directors had attended this seminar.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) on 18 December 2012 in compliance
with Rule 5.34 of the GEM Listing Rules. Written terms of
reference in compliance with paragraph B.1.2 of the Code
has been adopted. The primary duties of the Remuneration
Committee are to evaluate the performance and determine
the remuneration packages of the Directors and the senior
management of the Group, and evaluate the performance
and make recommendations on any other employee benefit
arrangement. At present, the Remuneration Committee consists
of three independent non-executive Directors, namely, Ms. Zhao
Guixin, Mr. Cornelis Jacobus Keyser and Mr. Lin Wenhui. Ms.
Zhao Guixin is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Remuneration
Committee held two meetings. Details of the attendance of the
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Remuneration Committee meeting during the year ended 31 +—HIEFEMNHFMNEE SR B R LT
December 2014 are set out below: ~

Attendance

HE

Ms. Zhao Guixin (Chairman) HEELZYE (£E) 2/2

Mr. Cornelis Jacobus Keyser Cornelis Jacobus Keyserst 4 2/2

Mr. Lin Wenhui MBS & 2/2

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Remuneration
Committee has considered and recommended to the Board (i)
the granting of share options to Directors and other eligible
participants under the share option scheme of the Company
adopted by the shareholders pursuant to a written resolution
dated 3 June 2013; and (ii) the salary increment for the executive
directors and the senior management of the Company in 2014.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a nomination committee (the
“Nomination Committee”) on 18 December 2012. Written terms
of reference in compliance with paragraph A.5.2 of the Code has
been adopted. The primary duties of the Nomination Committee
are to review the structure, size and composition of the Board
on a regular basis and make recommendations to the Board
regarding nomination of suitable candidate to fill vacancies in
the Board. At present, the Nomination Committee consists of
three independent non-executive Directors, namely, Ms. Zhao
Guixin, Mr. Cornelis Jacobus Keyser and Mr. Lin Wenhui. Ms.
Zhao Guixin is the chairman of the Nomination Committee.
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During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Nomination #HEZZT—WF+_A=+—HILFE  REZ

Committee held one meeting. Details of the attendance of the B&&8{TT — A8 - REZE TR TFELE
Nomination Committee meeting are set out below: FEHIT ¢

Attendance

HE

Ms. Zhao Guixin (Chairman) HEELZYT (£EF) 11

Mr. Cornelis Jacobus Keyser Cornelis Jacobus Keyserst 4 1/1

Mr. Lin Wenhui MBS &
During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Nomination
Committee has considered and reviewed the policy for the
nomination of Directors, the process and criteria to select
and recommend candidates for directorship. The Nomination
Committee recommended the Board to approve the proposed
sequence for re-election of retiring Directors in 2015 annual
general meeting. The Nomination Committee considers that the
existing policy for nomination, selection and recommendation
for directorship are suitable.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

The Company established a corporate governance committee
(the “CG Committee”) on 18 December 2012. Written terms of
reference in compliance with paragraph D.3.1 of the Code has
been adopted. The primary duties of the CG Committee are to
develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendation to the Board.
At present, the CG Committee consists of four members, namely
Mr. Cornelis Jacobus Keyser, Mr. Liu Stefan, Ms. Zhao Guixin
and Mr. Lin Wenhui. Mr. Cornelis Jacobus Keyser is the chairman
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of the CG Committee. All members are independent non- ARSI BARATNITE S RITIEAE, -
executive Directors, except Mr. Liu Stefan, who is an executive
Director and the chief executive officer of the Company.
During the year ended 31 December 2014, the CG Committee EHZE_Z—IMF+_A E+—E|Jt¢§ TEE
held two meetings. Details of the attendance of the CG JAZE@BITTMASRE CEEARLZECEH
Committee meeting are set out below: HE s

Attendance

HE

Mr. Cornelis Jacobus Keyser (Chairman) Cornelis Jacobus Keyserft 4 (F/F) 2/2
Mr. Liu Stefan 2R A 2/2
Ms. Zhao Guixin WERLL 1/2
Mr. Lin Wenhui M ER A 2/2
During the year ended 31 December 2014, the CG Committee Ejz?t T—NMFEF+—A=+—HILFE ET

has considered and reviewed the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance. The CG Committee
discussed the corporate governance model for the Company,
recommended the framework of corporate governance of
the Group and the role of the company secretary. The CG
Committee has considered and recommended to the Board
the Approval Framework which provides a formal schedule of
matters specifically reserved for board approval and delegation
of management and administration functions to the management.
The CG Committee considers that the existing policies and
practices of corporate governance of the Company are suitable.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”) on 19 December 2012 with written terms of
reference in compliance with the requirements as set out in Rule
5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules. The primary duties of the Audit
Committee are to review and supervise the financial reporting
process and internal control system of the Company, nominate
and monitor external auditors and provide advice and comments
to the Directors.

The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-
executive Directors, namely, Mr. Lin Wenhui, Ms. Zhao Guixin
and Mr. Cornelis Jacobus Keyser. Mr. Lin Wenhui is the chairman
of the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee has met the external auditor of the Group
to review the accounting principles and practices adopted by
the Group and discussed auditing, internal control and financial
reporting matters including the review of this report and financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Audit Committee
held four meetings. The attendance records of the Audit
Committee meetings during the year ended 31 December 2014
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are set out below: N
Attendance
HE
Mr. Lin Wenhui (Chairman) MR E (FE) 4/4
Ms. Zhao Guixin fispES - Segum 3/4
Mr. Cornelis Jacobus Keyser Cornelis Jacobus Keyserst 4 4/4

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Audit Committee
reviewed with the management and the auditors of the Company
their audit findings, the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Company, legal and regulatory compliance, and
financial reporting matters.

The audited consolidated results of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2014 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors ensure the financial statements of the Group are
prepared in accordance with the statutory requirement and
applicable accounting standards.

The Directors’ responsibilities in the preparation of the financial
statements and the auditor’s responsibilities are set out in the
section headed “Independent auditor’s report” of this report.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibility for the establishment,
maintenance and review of the Group’s system of internal
control.

The Board has conducted a review of the system of internal
control of the Group, and made suggestions to improve the
system. The Board was satisfied that the internal control system
of the Group, after implementing the suggested improvements,
would be effective.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The audit works of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2014 were performed by PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC”).

The total fee paid/payable in respect of the statutory audit and
non-audit services provided by PwC is set out in the following
table:

S,
EBNHBRRE

EERBEAKEWIM B RKDIERORTE BERKEE
R EatEARER -

EERBMBRERNVEERZBEN B EHER
RRE B RBEHRE | —#0 -

R EREE 1
SFEeHUAKENAMEEFIRNEY - #ER

B8 FREEE -

EXeCHAKENANREERIEETR - X
REEZAREGE -EFEEH - ARENR
METHEEERMERRRBETER -

BB B BN &
AEEBE_T-NFT_A=+—RAFENZ
BTRERBEERICEGFTHEIESAT ([ RIX
B]) AR -

SR K BOKE A BAE Bz M IR E R R A RS
EffENOEERIHNTX

2014 2013

—2-mF —F=F

HK$°000 HK$'000

FHBT FAETT

— Audit services — EBAZARTE 2,648 2,150

— Non-audit services — IEEZ RS 180 -

Total 4B EE 2,828 2,150
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COMPANY SECRETARY

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the
Company Secretary. The Company Secretary reports to the
Chairman on board governance matters, and is responsible for
ensuring that Board procedures are followed and for facilitating
communications among Directors as well as with Shareholders
and management.

During the year, the Company Secretary undertook over 15
hours of professional training in compliance with Rule 5.15 of
the GEM Listing Rules.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Pursuant to article 58 of the articles of association of the
Company, any one or more shareholders of the Company
holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than
one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the
right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all
times have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the
company secretary, to require an extraordinary general meeting
to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held
within two (2) months after the deposit of such requisition. If
within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the Board fails to
proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the
failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s)
by the Company.

In the event that any shareholders of the Company holding at
the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of
the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting
at general meetings of the Company would like to call for an
extraordinary general meeting, please make a written requisition
to the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong from time
to time, making attention to “The Board of Directors and the
Company Secretary”.

32

DEAME

FIBEFYR AARWERDAEBERMRY
NREAMEREESERFERNTIFER YAE
BREFSIEFESENL  URREEZEZHER
EEARRLEEE  HAER -

FAR - RAMECEIBIS/NENEEE - LA
BTRIFER ETRAIES A5 -

R SRR

RIBARAMABERADRFESE  EF—HHZ
EARBATLRH AR AIRARBRERAE LR
RZARABERA+D 2 — (REXERKEH
TIIRRFRHAGE Bat) WARRRREARE
RZABRUBESTAZREFTSLARAWE -
BREZTEHAL BRI T EEAFRBRER
REg: BZASRRERABEREME2)EA
NAR - WEFERBERIABERE - 1T—
CHERBRZAE  EBAANG A LS URE
TREEER MEFARNEFERBARAE
mal BN —SEERARARR MEMBE -

HERMFBENDREERNARARRBBERAX
EEREZARAFBERATDZ— (RERE
KARTIBRRFHAGE B WARBRR
RAFBRRFHIAE  FTIEAERAIAAAR
ARNBEENTIERFRIEZ2ER  YRHEEH
[(BEEERRAFMWE] -



ANNUAL REPORT 2014 —%&—U4E4EH

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

There are no provisions allowing shareholders to put forward
proposals at the general meetings under the memorandum
and articles of association. If shareholders wish to do so, they
may request to convene an extraordinary general meeting as
stipulated above and specify the proposals in such written
requisition.

For any enquiries, shareholders are welcome to contact the
Company by post to the principal office of the Company in Hong
Kong, by phone at (852) 3120 8888 by fax at (852) 3120 8800.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

All corporate communication materials published on the GEM
website (http://www.hkgem.com) are posted on the Company’s
corporate website (http://www.kvblistco.com) as soon as
practicable after their release. The Company’s constitutional
documents are also available on both websites. During the year
ended 31 December 2014, there have not been any significant
changes to the Company’s constitutional documents.

ESEE IR

DR AR B TR AR B 3 VR IR R A2 IR R
A& ER2®Y - HERSBAIWRTE L1
RFERBBHBRERIAR  TRESEEBR
GREEER

MEEMNER  BESBREREABTERRAR
EBNMTERER - BE(852) 3120 8888k F
H £(852) 3120 8800LE A T4 -

REEBRE

Fra TSR B R Bk (http://www.hkgem.com)
WEEBAESERBELEEAEBRATRR
RARFIEZENL (hitp://www.kvblistco.com)
BH o ARNAIMBEBERXHTIEREHNZN
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The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of KVB
Kunlun Financial Group Limited (the “Company”,
its subsidiaries, the “Group”) is pleased to present its report
together with the audited financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2014.

together with

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and
the activities of the subsidiaries are set out in Note 26 to the
consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year ended 31
December 2014 by business and geographical segments are set
out in Note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

ANNUAL RESULTS

The annual results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2014 are set out in the section headed “Consolidated statement
of comprehensive income” of this report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of
the Group during the year ended 31 December 2014 are set out
in Note 12 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Group during
the year ended 31 December 2014 are set out in Note 22 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in reserves of the Group during the year
under review are set out in the section headed “Consolidated
statement of changes in equity” of this report.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float during the
year ended 31 December 2014.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the funds
in the share premium account and retained earnings of the
Company are distributable to the shareholders of the Company
subject to the provisions of the memorandum and articles of
association of the Company and provided that immediately
following the date on which the dividend is proposed to be
distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay off its debts
as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

As at 31 December 2014, in the opinion of the Directors, the
Company’s reserves available for distribution to shareholders
was approximately HK$177 million (2013: HK$168 million).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year, the aggregate percentage of purchases attributable
to the Group’s five largest suppliers is approximately 24.61%
of the total purchases of the Group and the largest supplier
included therein amounted to approximately 6.62%.

For the year, the aggregate percentage of sales attributable to
the Group'’s five largest customers accounted for approximately
15.0% of the total sales of the Group and the largest customer
included therein amounted to approximately 5.9%.

At no time during the year have the Directors, chief executive,
substantial shareholders of the Company or any of its
subsidiaries or their associates (which to the knowledge of the
Directors own more than 5% of the Company’s share capital)
had any interest in these major customers and suppliers.
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DIVIDEND

On 10 November 2014, the Board has resolved to pay an interim
dividend of 2014 of HK0.675 cents per ordinary share and
distributed to the shareholders on 26 November 2014. A total of
HK$13,500,000 was paid to the then shareholders.

The Board recommend the payment of a final dividend of
HK1.075 cents per ordinary share to the shareholders. The final
dividend, if approved by the shareholders at the forthcoming
annual general meeting to be held on Wednesday, 6 May 2015,
will be paid on Thursday, 21 May 2015 to the shareholders
whose name appear on the register of members of the Company
on Thursday, 14 May 2015.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

Details of the Group’s retirement benefits scheme for the year
ended 31 December 2014 are set out in Note 2.16 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Significant related party transactions entered into by the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2014 is disclosed in Note
27 to the consolidated financial statements. Certain of these
transactions also constitute continuing connected transactions
under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the “GEM Listing Rules”), as
identified below.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

As disclosed in the prospectus of the Company dated 11
June 2013 (the “Prospectus”), the Company has entered into
a shared services agreement on 18 December 2012 and a
supplemental agreement on 3 June 2013 (together, the “Shared
Services Agreement”) with KVB Kunlun Holdings Limited (“KVB
Holdings”, together with its subsidiaries which do not belong
to the Group, the “Non-Listed Group”), pursuant to which the
Company has agreed to provide or procure the subsidiaries
of the Company to provide group management, information
technology, marketing and administration support services to
the Non-Listed Group subject to the terms and conditions of
the Shared Services Agreement. The proposed cap amounts of
the fees to be received by the Group under the Shared Services
Agreement for each of the three years ended 31 December 2013
and 31 December 2014, and ending 31 December 2015 are
HK$2,905,000, HK$3,050,000 and HK$3,203,000 respectively.
Such transactions are subject to reporting, annual review and
announcement requirements.

Moreover, as disclosed in the Prospectus, the Company have
entered into the following transactions which are subject to
the reporting, annual review, announcement and independent
shareholders’ requirements:

(i) the Company has entered into an office licence
agreement on 18 December 2012 and a supplemental
agreement dated 3 June 2013 (together, the “Office
Licence Agreement”) with KVB Holdings, pursuant to
which the Company has agreed to provide or procure
the subsidiaries of the Company to provide the sharing
of the offices to the Non-Listed Group subject to the
terms and conditions of the Office Licence Agreement.
The proposed cap amounts of the fees to be received
by the Group under the Office Licence Agreement for
each of the three years ended 31 December 2013 and
31 December 2014, and ending 31 December 2015 are
HK$11.4 million, HK$11.9 million and HK$12.5 million,
respectively; and
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(ii) the Company has entered into cash dealing agreement on
18 December 2012 and a supplemental agreement dated
3 June 2013 (together, the “Cash Dealing Agreement”)
with KVB FX Limited (“KVB FX”), KVB FX Pty Limited
(“KVB FX Pty”) and KVB Kunlun Canada Inc. (“KVB CA"),
being members of the Non-Listed Group. Pursuant to the
Cash Dealing Agreement, KVB NZ has agreed to provide
the cash dealing services to each of KVB FX, KVB FX Pty
and KVB CA, subject to the terms and conditions of the
Cash Dealing Agreement. The proposed cap amounts
of the aggregate trading volume of KVB FX, KVB FX
Pty and KVB CA under the Cash Dealing Agreement
for each of the three years ended 31 December 2013
and 31 December 2014, and ending 31 December 2015
are US$2.9 billion, US$2.9 billion and US$2.9 billion,
respectively.

Further details in relation to the Shared Services Agreement, the
Office Licence Agreement and the Cash Dealing Agreement are
set out in the Prospectus.

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 29
January 2014, the Company and Banclogix System Co., Limited
entered into an information technology services agreement
(“Information Technology Services Agreement”) in respect of
transaction relating to the provision of software development
and maintenance services, IT infrastructure project management
and maintenance services, and IT risk assessment services
to the Group. The proposed annual caps for the transactions
contemplated under the Information Technology Services
Agreement for each of (i) the period from the date of agreement
on 29 January 2014 to 31 December 2014; and (ii) for the year
ending 31 December 2015 are HK$5,000,000 and HK$5,500,000,
respectively.
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All independent non-executive Directors have reviewed and
confirmed that the above continuing connected transactions
have been entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(i) either on normal commercial terms or, if there are not
sufficient comparable transactions to judge whether
they are on normal commercial terms, on terms no less
favourable to the Group than terms available to or from
(as appropriate) independent third parties; and

(iii)  in accordance with the relevant agreement governing
them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The Directors also confirm that the Company has complied with
the disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 20 of
the GEM Listing Rules.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note
740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued
his unqualified letter containing his findings and conclusions
in respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed
by the Group in this section headed “Continuing Connected
Transactions” above in accordance with Rule 20.38 of the GEM
Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided
by the Company to the Stock Exchange.
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DIRECTORS

During the year ended 31 December 2014 and up to the date of
this report, the Board comprises the following Directors:

Executive Directors

Mr. Liu Stefan (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Ng Chee Hung Frederick

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Li Zhi Da (Chairman)
Mr. Stephen Gregory McCoy

Independent non-executive Directors

Ms. Zhao Guixin
Mr. Cornelis Jacobus Keyser
Mr. Lin Wenhui

The biographical details of the Directors as at the date of
this report are set out in the section of “Directors and senior
management” of this report.

RETIREMENT OF DIRECTORS

In accordance with article 84(1) of the articles of association
of the Company, Mr. Liu Stefan, Mr. Ng Chee Hung Frederick
and Mr. Stephen Gregory McCoy shall retire from office and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors has entered into any service contract
with any member of the Group which is not determinable by the
Group within one year without payment of compensation, other
than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Details of the Directors’ remuneration are set out in Note 25 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2014, save as disclosed below, none of
the Directors and chief executive has any interest or short
position in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ”)
which are required to be (i) notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests and short positions which he is taken
or deemed to have taken under such provisions of the SFO);
or (i) entered in the register kept by the Company pursuant
to section 352 of the SFO; or (iii) notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM
Listing Rules:
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Shares  Options (Note 1)
ity BRE (B7EE1)
Li Zhi Da (“Mr. Li") Interest in controlled 1,500,000,000 - 1,500,000,000 75.00
(Note 2) corporation

FEE ([2E%E]D (H72)  RIBHEENER
Liu Stefan Beneficial owner - 9,520,000 9,520,000 0.48
s EHREAA
Ng Chee Hung Frederick Beneficial owner - 4,000,000 4,000,000 0.20
R EnEAA
Stephen Gregory McCoy Beneficial owner - 800,000 800,000 0.04

ERMAA
Zhao Guixin Beneficial owner - 200,000 200,000 0.01
HEE EREAA
Cornelis Jacobus Keyser Beneficial owner - 200,000 200,000 0.01

EnBEAA
Lin Wenhui Beneficial owner - 200,000 200,000 0.01
M EHEAA
Notes: Htat -
1. These Options were granted on 10 January 2014 under the 1. FZERBREER-F—NF— A+ HRELAR

Company'’s share option scheme.

2. These 1,500,000,000 shares are held by KVB Holdings. As Mr. Li
is entitled to control over one-third of the voting power at general
meetings of KVB Holdings, he is deemed under the SFO to be
interested in these 1,500,000,000 shares held by KVB Holdings.
On 29 January 2015, KVB Holdings and CITIC Securities
Company Limited (“CITIC Securities”) entered into a conditional
share purchase agreement (the “Share Purchase Agreement”) in
relation to the sale and purchase of 1,200,000,000 shares in the
Company. As a result of the entering into of the Share Purchase
Agreement, as at 29 January 2015, CITIC Securities is deemed
to be interested in 1,200,000,000 shares in the Company under
the SFO.

ARV 5 &R

2 3% £1,500,000,000% f¢ 17 KVB Holdings
FFH o IR P EFEIEHKVB Holdingsh
RAELHBB=52—2REE REEZEF
RHEEG - 1% #%8 ARKVB Holdings# &
2 1,600,000,000% & 17 F B #wm o R=-F
—AF—H =+ H  KVB Holdingsjt & &
1,200,000,0008% 25 2 7] B% 17 £2 4 {5 4lF 5% % 17
BRAaE] ([FiEil7]) 5T B IK1HR 175 B 1
Z ([ROBERZE]) - ARRGBE p#mF
i RIEEFREIEN - FlEialFER = F—
AFE—HA=+NHREBHEEER,200,000,000
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

So far as is known to the Directors as at 31 December 2014, the
following persons had an interest or short positions in the shares
or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register

FERR
BREEMRM R

—mE+=—A=+—8" K
TATRARRG 2D FAABRG, B AR
PARIE B 5 K B & 6] 5533615 FT i1 2 & ro fif

required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO: R BRE
Approximate
percentage of
Number of issued share
Name Capacity shares held capital
&8 87 FERHSE FERITRE
BRESL
Shares Options Total
) BiRE Bt
KVB Holdings (Note 1) Beneficial owner 1,500,000,000 - 1,500,000,000 75.00
KVB Holdings (#7z1) EREBA 1,500,000,000 - 1,500,000,000 75.00
Calypso International Investment Beneficial owner 106,525,000 - 106,525,000 5.33
Co., Limited (Note 2)
Calypso International Investment ERBEEA 106,525,000 - 106,525,000 5.33
Co., Limited (#7:22)
HNA Group (International) Company Interest in controlled 106,525,000 - 106,525,000 5.33
Limited (81 &R (ER)ER R F) corporation
(Note 2)
BHERE (BR) BRAR (Hit2) RREHEE 2 106,525,000 - 106,525,000 5.33
HNA Group Co., Ltd. Interest in controlled 106,525,000 - 106,525,000 5.33
(BMEBARLE) (Note 2) corporation
BREBEERAR (Hit2) IR EHER 2 g 106,525,000 - 106,525,000 5.33
Yangpu Jianyun Investment Co., Ltd. Interest in controlled 106,525,000 - 106,525,000 533
(FHEERERRDA) (Note 2) corporation
FRREREBRAR (Hit2) RREHER 2 #5 106,525,000 - 106,525,000 5.33
Hainan Traffic Administration Holding Interest in controlled 106,525,000 - 106,525,000 5.33
Co., Ltd. (BEREEREBAF) corporation
(Note 2)
BERERRERAR (Hit2) REEHEE 2 106,525,000 - 106,525,000 5.33
Shengtang Development (Yangpu) Interest in controlled 106,525,000 - 106,525,000 5.33
Co. Ltd. (REBR(TH)BRAF) corporation
(Note 2)
RERR (58) BRAR (Hit2) RREHER 2 5 106,525,000 - 106,525,000 5.33
Labour Union of Hainan Airlines Interest in controlled 106,525,000 - 106,525,000 5.33
Co., Ltd. (BEMZERHEBRD corporation
Ie% éﬁ) (Note 2)
BEMERNERARIZZES REEHEE 2 106,525,000 - 106,525,000 5.33
(%/75%2)
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Notes:

1. Mr. Li, a non-executive Director, was entitled to control over one-
third of the voting power at general meetings of KVB Holdings.
On 29 January 2015, KVB Holdings and CITIC Securities entered
into the Share Purchase Agreement in relation to the sale and
purchase of 1,200,000,000 shares in the Company. As a result
of the entering into of the Share Purchase Agreement, as at 29
January 2015, CITIC Securities is deemed to be interested in
1,200,000,000 shares in the Company under the SFO.

2. As confirmed by Calypso International Investment Co., Limited,
as at 31 December 2014, Calypso International Investment
Co., Limited was a wholly owned subsidiary of HNA Group
(International) Company Limited (/&% B (EIE)E R 2 a])
(formerly known as HNA Group International Headquarter (Hong
Kong) Co., Limited (V&% E I 42 55( 2 %) B IR 2 7])), which was
in turn owned as to 91.09% by HNA Group Co., Ltd. (/G#i %5
AR 22 E]). HNA Group Co., Ltd. was held as to 30% by Yangpu
Jianyun Investment Co., Ltd. (¥ #ZEEREHR2F]) and 70% by
Hainan Traffic Administration Holding Co., Ltd. (B X BB IR
23 A|]). Hainan Traffic Administration Holding Co., Ltd. was in turn
held as to 50% by Shengtang Development (Yangpu) Co., Ltd.
(B (F8) B IR A]). Shengtang Development (Yangpu) Co.,
Ltd. was held as to 65% by the Labour Union of Hainan Airlines
Co., Ltd. (BRMZERGERAFIEZEZ).

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2014, the Directors
are not aware of any other person who has an interest or short
position in the shares or underlying shares (including interest
in options, if any) of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO.

CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Continuing connected
transactions” above, no contract of significance in relation to the
Group’s business to which any member of the Group was a party
and in which a director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year
ended 31 December 2014.
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Save as disclosed in the section headed “Continuing connected
transactions” above, no contract of significance (including
provision of services) between the Company, or any of its
subsidiaries, and a controlling shareholder or any of its
subsidiaries subsisted during the year ended 31 December
2014.

DIRECTORS’ COMPETING INTERESTS

During the period under review, none of the Directors or their
respective associates (as defined under the GEM Listing Rules)
had any business or interest in a business which competes or
may compete with the business of the Group.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

For the purpose of the listing of the Company, each of KVB
Holdings and Mr. Li,
entered into a deed of non-competition dated 18 December 2012

being a non-executive Director, have
and the supplemental deed dated 3 June 2013 (collectively, the
“Deed of Non-competition”) in favour of the Company, further
details of which are disclosed in the Prospectus.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
compliance with the Deed of Non-competition by KVB Holdings
and Mr. Li during the year under review, and are satisfied that
Deed of Non-competition have been complied with by KVB
Holdings and Mr. Li during the year under review.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
on 3 June 2013.

(a) Purpose of the Scheme

The purpose of the Scheme is for the Group to attract,
retain and motivate talented Participants (as defined
below) to strive for future developments and expansion
of the Group.

(b) Participants of the Scheme

Under the Scheme, the Board may, at its discretion, invite
the following persons as participants (the “Participants”)
of the Scheme:
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()

(i) any executive or non-executive Director including
any independent non-executive Director or any
employee (whether full-time or part-time) of any
member of the Group;

(i) any trustee of a trust (whether family, discretionary
or otherwise) whose beneficiaries or objects
include any employee or business associate of
the Group;

(iii)  any consultant (in the areas of legal, technical,
financial or corporate management) and other
adviser to any member of the Group;

(iv) any provider of goods and/or services to the
Group; or

(v) any other person whom the Board considers, in its
sole discretion, has contributed to the Group.

In determining the basis of eligibility of each Participant,
the Board would take into account such factors as the
Board may at its discretion consider appropriate.

Basis for determining the subscription price and
acceptance of offer

The subscription price for the shares under the Share
Option Scheme shall be a price determined by the
Board at its sole discretion and notified to the Participant
and shall be no less than the highest of (i) the closing
price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheet on the date on which an option is
granted; (ii) the average closing prices of the Shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for
the five trading days immediately preceding the date on
which an option is granted; and (iii) the nominal value of
the Share.

Offer of an option shall be deemed to have been accepted
by the grantee when the duplicate of the relevant offer
letter comprising acceptance of the option duly signed
by the grantee together with a remittance in favour of
the Company of HK$1.00 (or such other nominal sum
in any currency as the Board may determine) by way of
consideration for the grant.

(c)
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Maximum numbers available for issue

The total number of shares of the Company which may
be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted
under the Scheme shall not in aggregate exceed 10%
of the issued share capital of the Company as at the
adoption date (the “General Scheme Limit”) unless further
shareholders’ approval is obtained in general meeting,
provided that options lapsed in accordance with the
terms of the Scheme will not be counted for the purpose
of calculating the General Scheme Limit.

Notwithstanding the foregoing the total number of shares
of the Company which may be issued upon exercise of
all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the Scheme shall not exceed 30% of the shares of
the Company in issue from time to time.

Maximum entitlement of each Participant

For each Participant, the total number of shares issued
and to be issued upon exercise of all options granted and
further to be granted in any 12-month period (including
both exercised and outstanding options) and in the
12-month period up to and including the acceptance
date (including exercised, cancelled and outstanding
options) shall not in isolation or aggregate exceed 1% of
the shares, and any grant of option which would result
in such limit being exceeded shall be approved by the
Company in general meeting with such Participant and
any associate thereof abstaining from voting.

Time of exercise of the option

An option may be exercised in whole or in part in
accordance with the terms of the Scheme at any time
during the period commencing on the first business day
from the date of grant of option and expiring at the close
of business on a date to be determined and notified by
the Directors which shall not be more than 10 years from
the date of grant of option.

Unless the Directors otherwise determined and stated
at the time of granting the option, there is no minimum
period for which an option must be held before it can be
exercised.
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(g) Remaining life of the Scheme

The Directors shall be entitled at any time within 10 years
commencing on 3 July 2013 to offer the grant of an option
to any qualifying participants.

(h) Movements of the options granted under the Scheme

On 10 January 2014, the Company granted share
options to 68 individuals to subscribe for an aggregate
of 40,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in the
share capital of the Company. Among the 40,000,000
share options granted, 14,920,000 share options were
granted to six Directors. Details of the movements of the
options granted under the Scheme are set out in Note 24
to the consolidated financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2014, none
of the Directors, chief executive, substantial shareholders
of the Company or their respective associates (as defined
under the GEM Listing Rules) had any right to subscribe
for the shares of the Company under the Scheme.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 29 January 2015, the controlling shareholder of the Company
(the “Vendor”) and CITIC Securities Company Limited (“CITIC
Securities”) entered into a conditional share purchase agreement
(the “Share Purchase Agreement”) in relation to the sale and
purchase of 1,200,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each in the share
capital of the Company owned by the Vendor (each a “Sale
Share”), pursuant to which CITIC Securities conditionally agreed
to acquire and the Vendor conditionally agreed to sell the Sale
Shares, for a total consideration of HK$780,000,000, equivalent
to HK$0.65 per Sale Share. The Sale Shares represent 60% of
the then entire issued share capital of the Company. Completion
of the Share Purchase Agreement (“Completion”) is expected to
take place upon fulfilment of the conditions set out in the Share
Purchase Agreement.
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Immediately after the Completion, CITIC Securities will become
the owner of the Sale Shares, representing 60% of the total
issued share capital of the Company (assuming no further
change to the issued share capital of the Company), and
accordingly, CITIC Securities will be required to make an
unconditional mandatory general cash offer at the price of
HK$0.65 per share (“Share Offer Price”), which is the same as
the purchase price of each Sale Share, for all the issued shares
of the Company (other than those already owned or agreed to
be acquired by CITIC Securities and parties acting in concert
with it) upon Completion (the “Share Offer”), and an offer for the
cancellation of all the outstanding options under Rules 26.1 and
13.5 of the Takeovers Code (the “Option Offer”, together with
the “Share Offer” referred to as the “Offers”). CITIC Securities
Corporate Finance (HK) Limited will be making the Offers for
and on behalf of CITIC Securities. Pursuant to a non-acceptance
undertaking given by the Vendor to CITIC Securities pursuant
to the Share Purchase Agreement, the Vendor will not accept
the offer for 300,000,000 Shares held by the Vendor under the
Share Offer.

Details of significant events occurring after the reporting date
are set out in Note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.
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PURCHASE, SALE AND REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

For the year ended 31 December 2014, neither the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of
the Company’s listed securities.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last four financial years is set out in the section
headed “Financial summary” of this report.

COMPLIANCE ADVISER’S INTEREST

In accordance with Rule 6A.19 of the GEM Listing Rules,
the Company has appointed Quam Capital Limited to be the
compliance adviser. Pursuant to Rule 6A.23 of the GEM Listing
Rules, the compliance adviser will advise the Company in the
following circumstances:

(a) before the publication of any regulatory announcement,
circular or financial report;

(b) where a transaction, which might be a notifiable or
connected transaction, is contemplated including share
issues and share repurchases;

(c) where the Company proposes to use the proceeds of
the placing in a manner different from that detailed
in the Prospectus or where the business activities,
developments or results of the Company deviate from
any information in the Prospectus; and

(d) where the Stock Exchange makes an inquiry of the
Company regarding unusual movements in the price or
trading volume of the shares of the Company or any other
matters under Rule 17.11 of the GEM Listing Rules.

As at 31 December 2014, as notified by Quam Capital Limited,
neither Quam Capital Limited nor any of its directors, employees
or associates (as referred to in Note 3 to Rule 6A.31 of the GEM
Listing Rules) had any interest in the securities of the Company.
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Pursuant to the compliance adviser agreement dated 6 June
2013 entered into between the Company and Quam Capital
Limited, Quam Capital Limited has received and shall receive
monthly service fee for acting as the Company’s retained
compliance adviser for the period from 3 July 2013, being the
date of listing of the shares of the Company on GEM, to the date
on which the Company complies with Rule 18.03 of the GEM
Listing Rules in respect of its financial results for the second
full financial year commencing after the date of its initial listing.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands.

DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the
year amounted to HK$33,990 (2013: HK$136,000).

AUDITORS

The financial statements have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and, being eligible, offer

themselves for re-appointment.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Monday, 4 May 2015 to Wednesday, 6 May 2015, both days
inclusive, during the period no transfers of shares of the
Company will be registered. In order to qualify for attending
and voting at the 2015 Annual General Meeting, all transfer
documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in
Hong Kong, Union Registrars Limited, at A18/F., Asia Orient
Tower, Town Place, 33 Lockhart Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
for registration by no later than 4:00 p.m. on Thursday, 30 April
2015.
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The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Tuesday, 12 May 2015 to Thursday, 14 May 2015, both days
inclusive, during the period no transfers of shares of the
Company will be registered. In order to qualify for the final
dividend, all transfer documents accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch
share registrar in Hong Kong, Union Registrars Limited, at
A18/F., Asia Orient Tower, Town Place, 33 Lockhart Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration by no later than 4:00 p.m.
on Monday, 11 May 2015.

On behalf of the Board
Liu Stefan

Chief executive officer and executive Director

Hong Kong, 31 March 2015
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
KVB KUNLUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED
EREREREEFRAA

(Incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
KVB Kunlun Financial Group Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages 54 to 147,
which comprise the consolidated and company balance sheets
as at 31 December 2014, and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as
the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’'s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 December 2014, and of the Group’s profit and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 31 March 2015
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

ma MR
For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE_Z—NOF+-_A=+—HILFE
2014 2013
—E-IF —F-=F
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
Hiat FHET AT
Leveraged foreign exchange AR ZIME R EAth 22 Z A
and other trading income 5 144,207 135,543
Cash dealing income BEERXH5WA 5 16,636 11,505
Other income Hipg A 6 27,791 29,671
Total income g A 42 %8 188,634 176,719
Fees and commission expenses ZEARASEX 61,127 57,768
Staff costs 8 TR 7 36,545 30,819
Depreciation and amortisation PrEs ey 3,138 2,550
Lease payments under land T REFHHE R
and buildings 6,462 5,873
Administrative and other THEEMEERS
operating expenses 8 33,645 29,456
Total expenses Sz 4258 140,917 126,466
Operating profit 4R A K| 47,717 50,253
Finance cost A& Ak AN (20) (123)
Profit before tax KR % Ba ) 47,697 50,130
Income tax expense FriS %t =2 9 (12,616) (15,356)
Profit for the year FEEA 35,081 34,774
The notes on pages 62 to 147 form part of these consolidated ~ £62E 147 AWM EKERE M BEHREKH—FD ©

financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
e AL

For the year ended 31 December 2014

BHE_Z-MOF+_A=+—HILFE

2014 2013
—E-IF —F-=F
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
Kzt FExT FHIT
Other comprehensive income Ha 2wk
Item that may be reclassified to  BJfEEFH P IEE 18752 T8
profit or loss
Currency translation difference EHEIE N ERE (5,296) (1,764)
Other comprehensive income FEEMEENE (FREIE)
for the year, net of tax (5,296) (1,764)
Total comprehensive income FEIHEKZEEE
for the year 29,785 33,010
Earnings per share for profit FREARNEIRERE ARG
attributable to the equity holders &7~ G ZFI
of the Company for the year
- Basic (HK cents per share) — BER (ASBRBILFIR) 11 1.75 1.90
- Diluted (HK cents per share) — 85 (AZIRABWAIR) 11 1.75 1.90
Dividends iz B 10 35,000 39,500

The notes on pages 62 to 147 form part of these consolidated  #62FE 147 B KIS ER 4 E B TEHEN —ED -
financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

f A B ER AR

As at 31 December 2014
RZZE—WHFE+=—A=+—H

2014 2013
—E-IF —F-=F
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
Kzt THET FBTT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - RE KRB 12 7,062 6,301
Intangible assets B EE 13 5,083 257
Deferred tax assets FRIETHIAE B 19 947 413
13,092 6,971
Current assets REEE
Tax prepayments TEFIRIE - 567
Other assets and prepayments Eﬁﬂé?&iﬁﬁm 14 6,590 4,973
Amounts due from ultimate JE U B AR AR %
holding company 27 - 23
Amounts due from fellow JE Uk [B] 2B B A Bl 5k38
subsidiaries 27 - 75
Derivative financial instruments TTEEmT A 15 55,544 56,594
Balances due from agents FEURIE 4S5 16 12,099 16,910
Cash and bank balances and R MIRTT A ERIA K
client trust bank balances REEHRITERS 17 539,185 483,880
Total current assets RBEEAE 613,418 563,022
Total assets EEH#E 626,510 569,993
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES BREREE
Share capital R& 7K 22 20,000 20,000
Reserves EE 342,746 343,703
Retained earnings 1REE B F 29,977 18,396
Total equity R 392,723 382,099

The notes on pages 62 to 147 form part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

AR EARE

As at 31 December 2014
RZZE—WmE+=—A=+—H

2014 2013
—E-F —F—=F
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
it FERT FET
Current liabilities REBEE
Finance lease obligations BhE &R 18 41 45
Current income tax liabilities BNEAFTIS R & s 7,358 3,068
Other payables and accrued HEbENFIERERTAE
liabilities 20 17,158 12,189
Amounts due to fellow NGBS S NG e
subsidiaries 27 488 312
Derivative financial instruments TTESmT A 15 4,662 2,579
Clients’ balances KR #&H 21 203,874 169,426
233,581 187,619
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Finance lease obligations BhE &R 18 73 126
Deferred tax liabilities EEF T B (S 19 133 149
206 275
Total liabilities EEEE 233,787 187,894
Total equity and liabilities HERRERE 626,510 569,993
Net current assets REBEEFE 379,837 375,403
Total assets less current MEERRBAR
liabilities 392,929 382,374

Approved and authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on
31 March 2015

Director

EZE

The notes on pages 62 to 147 form part of these consolidated
financial statements.

ER_ZE-—hF=—A=1T—HEESFSHERK

RETIE

Director

EF

FO2E147T ARG M BRRA—&F D
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BALANCE SHEET OF THE COMPANY

AEIEERAER

As at 31 December 2014
RZZE—WHFE+=—A=+—H

2014 2013
—E-MF —_F—=
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
Kzt THET FBTT
ASSETS EE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investment in a subsidiary R—EB AR ZEE 26 8,109 1
8,109 1
Current assets REBEE
Cash and bank balances e RIRITHER 139,663 123,745
Amounts due from a subsidiary JEUR — B B A Bl 2 FA 27 64,653 65,907
Amounts due from ultimate FEUR S 4RV % A B FUE
holding company 27 - 12
Prepayments AR 611 675
Total current assets RBEEAE 204,927 190,339
Total assets EEHAE 213,036 190,340
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES ERRAE
Share capital R 7R 22 20,000 20,000
Reserves s 171,378 166,928
Retained earnings {REB & A 6,028 1,335
Total equity ERBE 197,406 188,263
Current liabilities HREEE
Amounts due to subsidiaries R NG B 27 13,901 663
Other payables and accrued HEMEMNFIERETAE
liabilities 20 1,729 1,414
Total liabilities EERE 15,630 2,077
Total equity and liabilities HEZREE 213,036 190,340
Net current assets RBEEZE 189,297 188,262
Total assets less current BWEERRBERS
liabilities 197,406 188,263

The notes on pages 62 to 147 form part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
AR ER
For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE-Z-MO&+_A=+—HILSFE

Retained
Share  Currency earnings/
Share Share Capital option translation (accumulated Total
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve losses) equity
REEFH/
k& ROEE EAEE BRERE SYERRE (RHEBR)  BEEE
Note  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
Wi AR TER TAR AR TER TER TAR
At 1 January 2013 Rn=2-=%-f-H 100 56,991 171,892 6,647 (2,878) 232,752
Comprehensive income 2ENE
Profit for the year EERT = - - - - 34,774 34,774
Other comprehensive income ~ EE At 2N
for the year - - - - (1,764) - (1,764)
100 56,991 171,892 - 4,883 31,896 265,762
Capitalisation issue BARET 2 16,467 (16,467) - - - - -
Placing of new shares RENR 22 3,433 151,758 - - - - 165,191
Shares issue expenses RipgaRZ = (9,354) = = = = (9,354)
Dividends ) 10 - (16000) - - - (13500)  (29,500)
Balance at 31 December 2018 R=E-=F+=F
=t-R&H 20,000 166,928 171,892 = 4,883 18,396 382,099
At 1 January 2014 RZE-NE-A-H 20,000 166,928 171,892 - 4,883 18,396 382,099
Comprehensive income 2EKE
Profit for the year EERF - - - - - 35,081 35,081
Other comprehensive income  EE H 12 Al
for the year - - - - (5,296) - (5,296)
20,000 166,928 171,892 - (413) 53,477 411,884
Share option scheme G HE] 24 - - - 4,339 - - 4,339
Dividends ke 10 - - - - - (23,500)  (23,500)
Balance at 31 December 2014 R=Z-W%+=H
=t-REH 20,000 166,928 171,892 4,339 (413) 299077 392,723

The notes on pages 62 to 147 form part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED CASH
A B EE

FLOW STATEMENT

For the year ended 31 December 2014

BHE_Z-MOF+_A=1+—HILFE

2014 2013
—E2-ImE —E—=F
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
HiEt TER TET
Cash flows from operating activities R& EZEFIERLRE
Profit before tax BR B0 A A 47,697 50,130
Adjustments for: FHEE
Depreciation and amortisation HER#HY 12&13 3,138 2,550
Interest income B A (1,811) (1,525)
Gain on disposal of fixed assets HEEE & ER R - (19)
Share option expenses ERERS 7 4,339 -
Cash flows from operating activities &E& & # EA KL TH
before working capital changes FBEEReE 53,363 51,136
Decrease/(increase) in pledged BEMTEBHEFTRLD /(Em)
time deposits 2,800 (28,506)
Increase in client trust bank balances & FE{Z:LiR1T4 41N (25,058) (68,217)
Decrease/(increase) in balances due FEURRIBAEERR L/ (3EhN)
from agents 4,811 (2,873)
Decrease/(increase) in derivative TESBI AR /(58 m)
financial instruments 3,133 (24,622)
(Increase)/decrease in other assets  Hfh&E KFBMNZIE (&), Hd
and prepayments (1,755) 3,836
Decrease/(increase) in amounts due  ESZARIER A RZIER D /(3L H0)
from ultimate holding company 23 (3,706)
Decrease in amounts due from fellow  FEUL[F Z [T & A B ZIE R 2
subsidiaries 75 126
Increase/(decrease) in amounts due  FE R RMB AR ZEZ M,/ CFid)
to fellow subsidiaries 176 (386)
Increase in clients balances BEEHIEN 34,448 21,836
Increase/(decrease) in other payables H fth fE {778 &
and accrued liabilities EEFaEEm  CRd) 4,969 (3,058)
Cash generated from/(used in) KRR /(A Be
operations 76,965 (39,434)
Income tax paid BT (7,654) (11,493)
Net cash generated from/(used in) KESEEE /(FrR) REEE
operating activities 69,311 (50,927)

The notes on pages 62 to 147 form
financial statements.

60

part of these consolidated

FO2E147TEMM RS M BRRA—EF D



ANNUAL REPORT 2014 —Z&— 44

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
HEBERER

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BHE_Z-MOF+_A=+—HILFE

2014 2013
—E-NEF —T—=F
Note HK$’000 HK$’'000
Kz FTER FHET
Cash flows from investing activities REZEHFEREARE
Interest received REV GRS 1,969 1,316
Purchase of property, plant and BEVE BEMREURENEE
equipment and intangible assets 12&13 (8,756) (2,978)
Proceeds from disposal of plant and  HERKE KB ERSHIE
equipment - 19
Net cash used in investing activities R &EEFMAE %5 (6,787) (1,643)
Cash flows from financing activities REZEFfMBHEERE
Net proceeds from issue of shares B BEATETS FORF 58 22 - 155,192
Payment of transaction costs BATHRAD FBIE R B A 3R
attributable to issue of new shares - (9,354)
Repayment of finance lease EEREHERE
obligations (57) (94)
Dividends paid BEfRE 10 (23,500) (29,500)
Net cash (used in)/generated from MEED (FTA),/ FEHEF8E
financing activities (23,557) 116,244
Net increase in cash and cash REeRBEEEYEMFEHE
equivalents 38,967 63,674
Cash and cash equivalents at FRE KR EEY
beginning of year 310,675 248,650
Effect of foreign exchange rate b R B By S 2R AR
changes, net (5,920) (1,649)
Cash and cash equivalents at EREERELEEY
end of year 17 343,722 310,675

The notes on pages 62 to 147 form part of these consolidated — F62E 147 B KM B4R A IS HRER A — 20D
financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Aok B S 25 R M

1

62

CORPORATE INFORMATION

1.1

General information

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman
Islands on 9 November 2010 as an exempted
company with limited liability under the Companies
Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and
revised) of the Cayman Islands. The address of
its registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, PO Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111,
Cayman Islands.

The Company’s shares have been listed on the
Growth Enterprise Market (the “GEM”) of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) since 3 July 2013.

The Company is an investment holding company
and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in the
provision of leveraged foreign exchange and other
trading, cash dealing business, and other service.

The financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$”), unless otherwise stated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements
are set out below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group
have been prepared in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the HKICPA. The consolidated financial
statements has been prepared under the historical
cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of
financial assets and liabilities (including derivative
instruments) at fair value through profit or loss,
which carried at fair value.

The consolidated financial statements are prepared
in accordance with the applicable requirements of
predecessor Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32) for
this financial year and the comparative period.

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of
certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement
in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the
financial information are disclosed in Note 4.

Unless otherwise stated herein, all references to
2014 refer to the Group’s fiscal year ended, or the
date, as the context requires, 31 December 2014.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2

64

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (continued)

(a)

Newly effective standards and amended
standards for the financial year from 1
January 2014 that is applicable to the
Group

to HKAS 32,
Presentation’

Amendment ‘Financial

instruments: on offsetting
financial assets and financial liabilities.
This amendment clarifies that the right of
set-off must not be contingent on a future
event. It must also be legally enforceable
for all counterparties in the normal course of
business, as well as in the event of default,
insolvency or bankruptcy. The amendment
also considers settlement mechanisms. The
amendment did not have a significant effect
on the group financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 36,
of assets’,

‘Impairment
on the recoverable amount
disclosures for non-financial assets. This
amendment addresses the disclosure of
information about the recoverable amount
of impaired assets if that amount is based
on fair value less costs of disposal. The
amendment did not have a significant effect
on the group financial statements as the
recoverable amounts are determined by
value in use.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (continued)

(a)

Newly effective standards and amended
standards for the financial year from 1
January 2014 that is applicable to the
Group (continued)

HK(IFRIC) 21, ‘Levies’, sets out the
accounting for an obligation to pay a levy if
that liability is within the scope of HKAS 37
‘Provisions’. The interpretation addresses
what the obligating event is that gives rise
to the payment a levy and when a liability
should be recognised. The Group is not
currently subjected to significant levies so
the impact on the Group is not material.

Other
interpretations which are effective for the
financial year beginning on 1 January 2014
are not material to the Group.

standards, amendments and
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (continued)

(b)

The following new standards and
amendments to standards have been
issued but are not effective for the
financial year ended 31 December 2014
which are relevant to the Group but the
Group has not early adopted

HKFRS 9, ‘Financial instruments’, addresses
the classification, measurement and
recognition of financial assets and financial
liabilities. The complete version of HKFRS
9 was issued in July 2014. It replaces
the guidance in HKAS 39 that relates to
the classification and measurement of
financial instruments. HKFRS 9 retains but
simplifies the mixed measurement model
and establishes three primary measurement
categories for financial assets: amortised
cost, fair value through other comprehensive
income and fair value through profit of loss.
The basis of classification depends on the
entity’s business model and the contractual
cash flow characteristics of the financial
asset. Investments in equity instruments
are required to be measured at fair value
through profit or loss with the irrevocable
option at inception to present changes in
fair value in other comprehensive income
not recycling. There is now a new expected
credit losses model that replaces the
incurred loss impairment model used in
HKAS 39. For financial liabilities there
were no changes to classification and
measurement except for the recognition
of changes in own credit risk in other
comprehensive income, for liabilities
designated at fair value through profit or
loss. HKFRS 9 relaxes the requirements
for hedge effectiveness by replacing the
bright line hedge effectiveness tests. It
requires an economic relationship between
the hedged item and hedging instrument
and for the ‘hedged ratio’ to be the same
as the one management actually use for risk
management purposes. Contemporaneous
documentation is still required but is
different to that currently prepared under
HKAS 39. The standard is effective for
accounting periods beginning on or after 1
January 2018. Early adoption is permitted. It
is expected that the adoption of this revised
standard will not have a significant impact
on the Group’s results of operations and its
financial position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (continued)

(b)

The following new standards and
amendments to standards have been
issued but are not effective for the
financial year ended 31 December 2014
which are relevant to the Group but the
Group has not early adopted (continued)

HKFRS 15, ‘Revenue from contracts with
customers’ deals with revenue recognition
and establishes principles for reporting
useful information to users of financial
statements about the nature, amount,
timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash
flows arising from an entity’s contracts with
customers. Revenue is recognised when
a customer obtains control of a good or
service and thus has the ability to direct the
use and obtain the benefits from the good
or service. The standard replaces HKAS
18 ‘Revenue’ and HKAS 11 ‘Construction
contracts’ and related interpretations. The
standard is effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2017 and
earlier application is permitted. The group is
assessing the impact of HKFRS 15.

Other HKFRSs that are applicable for the financial

year beginning on or after 1 January 2014 have no

significant impact on the Group.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Subsidiaries

2.2.1 Consolidation

Subsidiaries are all entities (including
structured entities) over which the Group
has control. The Group controls an entity
when the Group is exposed to, or has rights
to, variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity.
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the
date on which control is transferred to the
Group. They are deconsolidated from the
date that control ceases.

The Group applies the acquisition method
of accounting to account for business
combinations. The consideration transferred
for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the
fair values of the assets transferred, the
liabilities incurred and the equity interests
issued by the Group. The consideration
transferred includes the fair value of any
asset or liability resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially
at their fair values at the acquisition date.
On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis,
the Group recognises any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree either at fair
value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the acquiree’s net
assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2
POLICIES (continued)

EESTBEME (&)

2.2 Subsidiaries (continued) 22 MBLAT (£)

2.2.1 Consolidation (continued) 2.2.1 A6 (&)

At the Company’s single entity level
balance sheet, investments in subsidiaries
are accounted for at cost less impairment.
Cost is adjusted to reflect changes in
consideration arising from contingent
consideration amendments. Cost also
includes direct attributable costs of
investment.

The excess of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair
value of any previous equity interest in the
acquiree over the fair value of the Group’s
share of the identifiable net assets acquired
is recorded as goodwill. If this is less
than the fair value of the net assets of the
subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain
purchase, the difference is recognised
directly in the statement of comprehensive
income. The Group determines at each
reporting date whether there is any
objective evidence that the investment in
the subsidiaries is impaired. If this is the
case, the Group calculates the amount of
impairment as the difference between the
recoverable amount of the associate and its
carrying value and recognises the amount
in the statement of comprehensive income.

Inter-company transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between
group companies are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with
the policies adopted by the Group.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2

2.3

Subsidiaries (continued)
2.2.2 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted
for at cost less impairment. Cost includes
direct attributable costs of investment. The
results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving
a dividend from these investments if the
dividend exceeds the total comprehensive
income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying
amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying
amount in the consolidated financial
statements of the investee’s net assets
including goodwill.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided
to the chief operating decision maker. The chief
operating decision maker is the person or group
that allocates resources to and assesses the
performance of the operating segments of an
entity. The Group has determined the Board of
Directors as its chief operating decision maker.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.4  Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of
each of the Group’s entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”).

The consolidated financial statements are
presented in HK$, which is the Company’s
functional and the Group’s presentation
currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions or valuation where items
are remeasured. Foreign exchange gains
and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation
at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.

2
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(c)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all
the Group entities (none of which has the
currency of a hyperinflationary economy)
that have a functional currency different from
the presentation currency are translated into
the presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance
sheet presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that
balance sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each
consolidated statements of
comprehensive income are translated
at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated
at the dates of the transactions); and

(iii)  all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive
income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.5

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at
historical cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment if any. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or are recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the Group and the cost of the
item can be measured reliably. All other repairs
and maintenance are charged to the profit or
loss during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
is calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate their cost to their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, as follows:

Leasehold 10 years or over the
improvements lease term, whichever
is shorter
Computer equipment 3 to 5 years

Furniture, fixtures and 3 to 5 years
equipment

Motor vehicles 3 to 5 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each
palance sheet date. Assets that are subject
to depreciation are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An asset’s carrying amount is written
down immediately to its recoverable amount if
the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of the asset’s fair value less
costs to sell and value in use.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

25

2.6

2.7

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These
are included in ‘other income’ in the consolidated
statements of comprehensive income.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment if any.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed
to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets
with finite lives are amortised over the useful
economic life (3 to 5 years) and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication
that the intangible asset may be impaired. The
amortisation period and the amortisation method
for an intangible asset with a finite useful life is
reviewed at least at each balance sheet date.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not
subject to amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation
are reviewed for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by
which the asset’'s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is
the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell
and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels
for which there are separately identifiable cash
flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets
other than goodwill that suffered impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment
at each balance sheet date.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.8 Financial assets
2.8.1 Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in
the following categories: financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss and loans
and receivables. Management determines
the classification of its financial assets at
initial recognition.

(a) Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are financial assets
held for trading. A financial asset is
classified in this category if acquired
principally for the purpose of selling
in the short term. Derivatives are
also categorised as held for trading
unless they are designated as
hedges. Assets in this category are
classified as current assets if it holds
the asset primarily for the purpose of
trading; otherwise, they are classified
as non-current.

(b) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-
derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. They
are included in current assets, except
for the amounts that are settled or
expected to be settled more than 12
months after the balance sheet date.
These are classified as non-current
assets.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

2.8 Financial assets (continued)

76

2.8.2 Recognition and measurement

Regular purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on trade-date —
the date on which the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset.

Financial assets are initially recognised
at fair value plus transaction costs for all
financial assets not carried at fair value
through profit or loss. Financial assets
carried at fair value through profit or loss
are initially recognised at fair value, and
transaction costs are expensed in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive
income. Gains and losses arising from
changes in the fair value of the “financial
assets at fair value through profit or
loss” category are included directly in
consolidated statement of comprehensive
income and are reported as “leveraged
foreign exchange and other trading income”
in the period in which they arise. Financial
assets are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the financial
assets have expired or where the Group
has transferred substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership.

Loans and receivables are carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest
method less impairment if any. The Group’s
receivables (including amounts due from
group companies) and “cash and cash
equivalents” fall under this category.
Accounts receivables and amounts due
from group companies are measured
subsequently at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate method. Interest
on loans is included in the consolidated
statements of comprehensive income and
is reported as net interest income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.8

2.9

Financial assets (continued)
2.8.3 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset
and the net amount reported in the balance
sheet when there is a legally enforceable
right to offset the recognised amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis
or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right
must not be contingent on future events and
must be enforceable in the normal course
of business and in the event of default,
insolvency or bankruptcy of the company
or the counterparty.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at each balance sheet
date whether there is objective evidence that a
financial asset classified as loans and receivables
is impaired. A financial asset is impaired and
impairment losses are incurred only if there is
objective evidence of impairment as a result of
one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset (a “loss event”) and
that loss event (or events) has an impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset
that can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications
that the debtors or a group of debtors is
experiencing significant financial difficulty, default
or delinquency in interest or principal payments,
the probability that they will enter bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation, and where
observable data indicate that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such
as changes in arrears or economic conditions that
correlate with defaults.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.9

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

The amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash
flows (excluding future credit losses that have not
been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate. The carrying amount
of the asset is reduced and the amount of the loss
is recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income. If a loan has a variable
interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any
impairment loss is the current effective interest
rate determined under the contract. As a practical
expedient, the Group may measure impairment
on the basis of an instrument’s fair value using
observable market data.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment was recognised (such as an
improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the
reversal previously recognised impairment loss
is recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Derivative financial instruments

The Group classifies derivatives as financial assets
or financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss at inception. These financial assets and
financial liabilities are classified as held for trading
by the Board of Directors.

Financial assets or financial liabilities held for
trading are those acquired or incurred principally
for the purposes of selling or repurchasing in
the short term. The Group does not classify any
derivatives as hedges in a hedging relationship.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on
the date a derivative contract is entered into and
are subsequently re-measured at their fair value.
Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair
value are recognised in the “leveraged foreign
exchange and other trading income” in the period
in which they arise.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand,
deposits held at call with banks, bank deposits
with original maturities of three months or less, and
bank overdrafts.

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow
statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash and cash equivalents available for the
disposition of the Group and exclude client trust
bank balances, and bank deposits held to secure
the banking facilities granted to the Group.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.12

2.13

2.14

Rental, utility and other deposits

Rental, utility and other deposits held on a long
term basis are stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less impairment if any.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently carried at amortised cost;
any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption value is
recognised in the profit or loss over the period of
the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the liabilities are due to be settled or
the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement for at least 12 months after the balance
sheet date.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including other payables
are recognised initially at fair value net of
transaction costs incurred. Financial liabilities
are subsequently stated at amortised cost; any
difference between proceeds net of transaction
costs and the redemption value is recognised
in the profit or loss over the period of the other
financial liabilities using the effective interest
method. Financial liabilities are derecognised when
they are extinguished — that is, when the obligation
is discharged, cancelled or expires.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2
POLICIES (continued)

EESTBEME (&)

2.15 Provision 2.15 #&145

A provision is recognised when a present
obligation (legal or constructive) has arisen as
a result of a past event and it is probable that a
future outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate
can be made of the amount of the obligation. When
the time value of money is material, provisions
are stated at the present value of the expenditure
expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot
be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed
as a contingent liability unless the probability
of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
Possible obligations, whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence
of one or more future events are also disclosed
as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.16 Employee benefits

(a)

Retirement benefits scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement
benefits scheme (the “Scheme”) under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for all of its employees in Hong
Kong. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to the profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the
rules of the Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiary,
which operates in New Zealand, are eligible
to participate in KiwiSaver plan on a
voluntary basis. This subsidiary is required
to contribute certain percentage of its
payroll costs to the fund only if employees
are making contribution to KiwiSaver plan.
The contributions are charged to the
profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the fund.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiary,
which operates in Australia, are required
to participate in employee superannuation
fund. This subsidiary is required to
contribute certain percentage of its payroll
costs to the fund. The contributions are
charged to the profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the
fund.

The assets of the Scheme and other plans
as described above are held separately
from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees
when contributed into the Scheme and other
plans.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.16 Employee benefits (continued)

(b)

(c)

Employee level entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave
are recognised when they are accrued to
employees. A provision is made for the
estimated liability for annual leave as a
result of services rendered by employees
up to the balance sheet date.

Bonus

The Group recognises a liability and an
expense for bonuses, in which the bonus
scheme is at the discretion of the Group’s
Directors based on the Group performance
that takes into consideration the profit
attributable to the Group after certain
adjustments. The Group recognises a
provision where contractually obliged or
where there is a past practice that has
created a constructive obligation.

2.17 Share-based payment transactions

(a)

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions

The Group operates a share option scheme
for the purpose of providing incentives
and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations. Employees (including directors)
of the Group receive remuneration in the
form of share-based payment transactions,
whereby employees render services
as consideration for equity instruments
(“equity-settled transactions”).
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.17 Share-based payment transactions (continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions (continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions with
employees is measured by reference to
the fair value at the date at which they are
granted. The fair value is determined with
reference to the fair value estimated by
external valuer under a valuation model
commonly used in the market.

In valuing equity-settled transactions,
no account is taken of any performance
conditions, other than conditions linked to
the price of the shares of the Company
(“market conditions”), if applicable.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is
recognised, together with a corresponding
increase in equity, over the year in which the
service conditions are fulfilled, ending on
the date on which the relevant employees
become fully entitled to the award (the
“vesting date”). The cumulative expense
recognised for equity-settled transactions
at each balance sheet date until the vesting
date reflects the extent to which the vesting
year has expired and the Group’s best
estimate of the number of equity instruments
that will ultimately vest. The charge or
credit to the income statement for a year
represents the movement in the cumulative
expense recognised as at the beginning
and end of that year.

When the options are exercised, the
company issues new shares. The proceeds
received net of any directly transaction
costs are credited to share capital.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.17 Share-based payment transactions (continued)

(a)

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions (continued)

Where the terms of an equity-settled award
are modified, as a minimum an expense
is recognised as if the terms had not
been modified. In addition, an expense
is recognised for any modification, which
increases the total fair value of the share-
based payment arrangement, or is otherwise
beneficial to the employee as measured at
the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled,
it is treated as if it had vested on the date
of cancellation, and any expense not yet
recognised for the award is recognised
immediately. However, if a new award is
substituted for the cancelled award, and
is designated as a replacement award on
the date that it is granted, the cancelled
and new awards are treated as if they were
a modification of the original award, as
described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is
reflected as additional share dilution in the
computation of earnings per share.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.17

2.18

2.19

Share-based payment transactions (continued)

(b) Share-based payment transaction among
group entities

The grant by the Company of options over
its equity instruments to the employees
of subsidiary undertakings in the Group
is treated as a capital contribution. The
fair value of employee services received,
measured by reference to the grant date fair
value, is recognised over the vesting periods
an increase to investment in subsidiaries
undertakings, with a corresponding credit to
equity in the parent entity accounts.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.
Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue
of new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Dividend on ordinary shares is recognised as a
liability in the consolidated financial statements
in the period in which it is approved by the
shareholders or directors where appropriate.

Income tax

The tax expense for the year comprises current
and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the profit
of loss, except to the extent that it relates to
items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity. In this case the tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.19 Income tax (continued)

(a)

(b)

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated
on the basis of the tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet
date in the countries where the Group’s
subsidiaries operate and generate taxable
income. Management periodically evaluates
position taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation
is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis
of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is recognised in full,
using the liability method, on temporary
differences arising between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. Deferred income tax is
determined using tax rates (and laws) that
have been enacted or substantially enacted
by the balance sheet date and are expected
to apply when the related deferred income
tax asset is realised or the deferred income
tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised
only to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary difference can be
utilised.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.19 Income tax (continued)
(b) Deferred income tax (continued)

Deferred income tax is provided on
temporary differences arising on investments
in subsidiaries, except for deferred income
tax liability where the timing of the reversal
of the temporary difference is controlled
by the Group and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities
are offset when there is a legally enforceable
right to offset current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when the deferred
income taxes assets and liabilities relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the taxable entity or
different taxable entities where there is an
intention to settle the balances on a net
basis.

2.20 Goods and Services Tax (“GST”)

The financial statements have been prepared so
that expenses/costs are stated inclusive of GST,
where appropriate. The Group is not a registered
person in term of the Goods and Services Tax Act
1985 in New Zealand.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.21

2.22

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that
the economic benefits will flow to the Group and
when the revenue can be measured reliably, on
the following bases:

(i) fees and commission income, when the
services have been rendered;

(i) management fees income, when the

services have been rendered; and

(iii)  interest income, on an accrual basis using
the effective interest method by applying
the rate that discounts the estimated future
cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial instrument to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset.

Cash dealing income

Unleveraged cash dealing services are provided
to corporate clients, in particular, those clients
engaged in money changing business for the
purpose of hedging their cash positions and
meeting settlement obligations. The Group is
rewarded by the spread between the price quoted
to our clients and the price offered by our market
makers. Cash dealing income is recognised when
cash dealing transactions have been completed
by market makers with reference to prevailing
exchange rate.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.23 Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks
and rewards of ownership are retained by the
lessor are classified as operating leases. Payments
made under operating leases (net of any incentives
received from the lessor), are charged to the profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the period of
the lease.

The Group leases certain property, plant and
equipment. Leases of property, plant and
equipment where the Group has substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership are classified
as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalized
at the lease’s inception at the lower of the fair value
of the leased property and the present value of the
minimum lease payments.

The corresponding rental obligations, net of
finance charges, are included in finance lease
obligation. Each lease payment is allocated
between the liability and finance charges. The
corresponding rental obligations, net of finance
charges, are included in non-current liabilities.
The interest element of the finance cost is charged
to the profit or loss over the lease period so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability for each period.
The property, plant and equipment acquired under
finance leases is depreciated over the shorter of
the asset’s useful life and the lease term.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Risk is inherent in the financial service business and
sound risk management is a cornerstone of prudent and
successful financial practice. The Group acknowledges
that a balance must be achieved between risks, control
and business growth. The principal financial risks inherent
in the Group’s business are credit risk, market risk
(including interest rate risk and foreign currency risk)
and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management
objective is to enhance shareholder value while retaining
exposure within acceptable thresholds in response
to changes in markets. The Group has a robust risk
management system in place to identify, analyse, assess
and manage risks.

The Group’s risk management is carried out by the Group
Risk Department under policies approved by the Group
audit, risk and compliance committee. The Group Risk
Department provides written principles for overall risk
management, as well as written policies covering specific
areas, such as mitigating credit risk, market risk, liquidity
risk, capital management risk and risk limits setting and
monitoring.

The policies for managing each of these risks are
summarised below:
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will
default on its contractual obligations resulting in
financial loss to the Group. The Group is exposed
to credit risk from accounts receivable from
customers and counterparties, bank balances,
and other assets and receivables. After evaluating
the client’s risk profiles, the Group sets stop-out
levels to the clients. Once their equity drops to
the stop-out level the Group’s trading system
will automatically liquidate the client’s positions.
Without taking into account any collateral held or
other credit enhancements, the maximum exposure
to credit risk is the carrying amounts of these
assets. The existing debtors have no defaults in
the past.

The Group’s bank deposits are held with banks
and balances due from agents are held with major
financial institutions and management reviews the
banks and financial institutions’ creditworthiness on
a regular basis. The banks and financial institutions
are of high credit quality and substantially with
a rating of grade A or with long established
relationships. The credit risk associated with these
balances is deemed insignificant.

The Group is also subject to credit risk relating
to other assets and receivables from ultimate
holding company and fellow subsidiaries. The
credit risk relating to other assets and receivables
from ultimate holding company and fellow
subsidiaries is treated as any other receivables
in the normal course of business. The utilisation
of credit limits has been closely monitored on
a daily basis, taking into account the financial
position and past experience. The Group did not
experience any losses from non-performance by
these counterparties. The credit risk associated
with these balances is considered as low.

3
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 SREREE (&)
3.1  Credit risk (continued) 3.1 fERK (&)

(a) Maximum exposure to credit risk (a) FHERFDEEMEEREHA
before collateral held or other credit MRS EERREE
enhancements
The Group’s maximum exposure to credit MR SEFRENGEERE
risk in the event the counterparties fail THEME  AASBEMEER
to perform their obligations as at the WEXESREERENR
balance sheet date, in relation to each SEERRERAGEEESR
class of financial assets, is the carrying BERAMTZEEENRE
amount of those assets as indicated in B - ZEeRBAEERT
the consolidated balance sheet. These T—OFER-T—=F+=
amounts represent the worst case scenario A=+—HFEBHNEER
of credit risk exposure to the Group at 31 BEREBRE - BRI RE
December 2014 and 2013, without taking A] TR 19 G Sk P B Eo At (5
into account any collateral held or other ERABER -
credit enhancements attached.

The carrying values of receivables and other 7R R B 75 R AR FR EE AR Y
assets arising from the course of business FEWRIE R H A B ERREE
of the Group are as follows: R
The Group rEE
2014 2013
—E-mF —T—=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHIT
Other assets Hith&E 5,269 3,420
Amounts due from ultimate JFE U B 42 52 A FIE
holding company - 23
Amounts due from fellow JE Uk [B] 2B B A Bl 538
subsidiaries - 75
Derivative financial instruments {74 &g T A 55,544 56,594
Balances due from agents FEURIB 45 12,099 16,910
Cash and bank balances and e RIBITEBRURE P
client trust bank balances EFEIRTTAS 539,185 483,880
612,097 560,902
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Credit risk (continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

3

TRERBER (&)
3.1 fFERR (F)

As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, the (b)) R-ZE—NFR_T—=4%F
maximum exposure of credit risk of the +=ZA=+—H ' ARFRIA
Company comprises the carrying amounts AR &= EERREEE
of amounts due from ultimate holding Wk iR A B I8 ~ U
company, amounts due from subsidiary and M8 A R FIE R AR EE R A
cash and bank balances on the balance NABEEBRRAMENE
sheets of the Company. MERTTHERR ©
None of the financial assets is either past (c) WESHEEDHSRE -
due or impaired.
The following table breaks down the Group’s (d) TRUBRAEMAD REEH
major credit exposure at their carrying FEFERR  WiEEZEZ
amounts, as categorised by geographical E—MOFER-T—=F+=
region as of 31 December 2014 and 2013. A=T—HB®X#HEREZS
The Group has allocated exposures to e AEEBEBEERZEHTF
regions based on the country of domicile of B BT 7E B 5K 5 e @ ’i:zt%iﬁz
its counterparties. Credit risk exposure by B ZRHESHNEER
geographical sectors is classified according et R EERE R ?é&ﬁ&%ﬂ
to the location of counterparties after taking FRIEM T ADHE o
into account the transfer of risk.
The Group REH
As at 31 December 2014 N-_ZE—MNE+—-_A=+—H
Asia
Pacific
excluding Europe
Hong Hong and other
Kong Kong regions Total
TAHE
(FEE BNR
B &%) Httne Mgt
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$000
TR T#Ex T#Ex TR
Other assets HEEE 2,713 2,556 - 5,269
Derivative financial instruments  #T4 4@ T A - 55,544 - 55,544
Balances due from agents N GeEE - 12,099 - 12,099
Cash and bank balances and BERBITEHUAR
client trust bank balances RPERITER 244815 227,890 66,480 539,185
Total st 247,528 298,089 66,480 612,097
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 cREAKRER (&)
3.1 Credit risk (continued) 3.1 fEFERR (&)
(d) (continued) d (&)
As at 31 December 2013 R=T—=F+=-F=+—H
Asia
Pacific
excluding Europe
Hong Hong and other
Kong Kong regions Total
DA
(B BN &
B BB) HiuR Bar
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET
Other assets Hp&E 2,659 761 = 3,420
Amounts due from ultimate JEM AR A BB
holding company - 23 - 23
Amounts due from fellow L GES NG
subsidiaries 75 - - 75
Derivative financial instruments ~ $T4 4R T A - 56,594 - 56,594
Balances due from agents JEURA I8 A 5 = 16,910 = 16,910
Cash and bank balances and Be RIRITEBUR
client trust bank balances RPERITES 218,999 195,226 69,655 483,880
Total FeE 221,733 269,514 69,655 560,902

As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, the
Company’s major credit exposure is within
Hong Kong region, except for the amounts
due from a subsidiary which were within
Asia Pacific Region.

A [ A ) — R BT B 2 A1 5K
BN RRARNEBREER
RIRA BB -
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 TREREE (&)
3.2  Market risk 3.2 TWHERAK
3.2.1 Interest rate risk 3.2.1 FEERE
Interest rate risk arises from movements ) == & b T B R 2R B A K&
in interest rates and the mismatch of fixed SEHEEFHENEE R
and floating rates between funding and SFENF R - AR
investing activities. The Group is exposed REBEFBRBESIRE
to material interest rate risk as the Group REERTFRITHBIER
invests all surplus funds in call accounts I 52 38 A R R OR B ) 52
with reputable banks and is susceptible to 2 WAEEEHERFE
movements in call interest rates. Interest [E B o F 2K @R B X &Y
rate risk arises from unexpected changes in BONKE) - kBB A
interest rates that may result in an adverse B R IR R KT HARIREE D
impact on the Group’s current and near 2 - NEBIWAKRF AT
future performance. The Group has not used fA] ) 2= 4 B ol iR HA FI R 5 4Y
any interest rate swaps nor forward interest HmHE R EEp
rate contracts to hedge its exposure to
interest rate risk.
The Group NEE
As at 31 December 2014 R-E—mFE+=-A=+—H
Floating Fixed Non-
interest interest interest
rate rate bearing Total
FBRE  EEAE %E @t
HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000  HK$000
TR TR TR TR
Assets EE
Other assets HEE - - 5,269 5,269
Derivative financial instruments 744 &8 TE - - 55,544 55,544
Balances due from agents FEM B A 5 1,754 - 10,345 12,099
Cash and bank balances and Be RFTEBUR
client trust bank balances RPERERTEAR 438,613 92,094 8,478 539,185
Liabilities &
Finance lease obligation AR ERE - 114 - 114
Other payables Hib AR - - 14,253 14,253
Amounts due to fellow ERRZRBRRZE
subsidiaries - - 488 488
Derivative financial instruments 144 @ T A - - 4,662 4,662
Clients’ balances RS - - 203,874 203,874
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 TRERERE (&)
3.2  Market risk (continued) 3.2 WHEARK (&)
3.2.1 Interest rate risk (continued) 3.2.1 FIFEE (&)
The Group rEE
As at 31 December 2013 R-ZE—=F+=-F=+—H
Floating Fixed Non-
interest interest interest
rate rate bearing Total
FERE  EENE %8 FeE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTExT TET TET TET
Assets BE
Other assets HinEE - = 3,420 3,420
Amounts due from ultimate e St gNETE
holding company - - 23 23
Amounts due from fellow e R 2 KT B AR5 IE
subsidiaries - - 75 75
Derivative financial instruments ~ £74 4/ T E = = 56,594 56,594
Balances due from agents BRI &R 1,100 - 15,810 16,910
Cash and bank balances and BE RBITESUR
client trust bank balances REERTER 316,700 157,046 10,134 483,880
Liabilities =L
Finance lease obligation MERERE = 171 = 171
Other payables Hih e TIE = - 10,278 10,278

Amounts due to fellow R RMBARFRE
subsidiaries
Derivative financial instruments T4 &g T A

Clients’ balances Rk

Based on the simulations performed and
with other variables held constant, the
profit before taxation for the year ended 31
December 2014 would increase/decrease
by approximately HK$4,404,000 (2013:
HK$3,178,000) should the interest rate
increase/decrease by 1%.

= 312 312
= 2,579 2,579
= 169,426 169,426

BEERREMEMITEERE
ERIFETEFE - WHERE
&/ T&1% ABE=-F
—mE+-_A=+—HItHF
FE R BB ATE A& 38 00 R
A #94,404,000%8 T (= &
— =% : 3,178,000 7¢) °
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2

Market risk (continued)

3.2.2 Foreign currency risk

Exchange rate fluctuation is the most
significant risk in leveraged foreign
exchange trading. The Group takes on
exposure to the effects of fluctuations in the
prevailing foreign currency exchange rates
on its financial position and cash flows. The
Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk
arising from various currency exposures,
primarily with respect to New Zealand
dollars and Australian dollars. The Group will
suffer a loss if it fails to cover a client deal at
a better exchange rate. The Group monitors
foreign exchange exposure by reviewing
the open position of the Group and client
trading performance. The risk is measured
by the use of sensitivity analysis and cash
flow forecasting. Specific risk limits are set
to measure and monitor foreign exchange
risk. Any excessive foreign exchange risks
are passed on to other financial institutions
through execution of trades with those
institutions. The management sets limits on
the level of exposure by currency and in
aggregate for both overnight and intra-day
positions, which are monitored on an intra-
day basis.

3

TRERE

B (#E)

3.2 WA (&)
3.2.2 JMEREE

R HERAINER F
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 SREAMRER (&)
3.2  Market risk (continued) 3.2 WHEARK (&)
3.2.2 Foreign currency risk (continued) 3.22 SEREE (&)
The tables below summarise the Group’s THRBARNERN T — Y
exposure to foreign currency exchange ERZE—=F+=H=+
rate risk as at 31 December 2014 and — B EEAINER R o TR
2013. Included in the tables are the assets MA AT EREAREES BR
and liabilities at carrying amounts in HK$ TRREEDENEERE
equivalent, categorised by the original f& o
currency.
As at 31 December 2014 R-E—NFE+=-A=+—H
HK$ NZD AUD usb JPY CNY  Others Total
#n  AfEER A e AE  AR% Aft a3
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
TEn Tér TEx TExr TEx  FExr  TEx  FiEx
The Group 15E
Assets BE
Other assets At AR 2,708 35 530 43 - 198 - 529
Derivative financial instruments T4 £ 8T & - 11,280 11,307 26,553 - - 454 55544
Balances due from agents  [EMA B 3 33 5% 10,380 570 - 549 12,009
Cash and bank balances and 4 REFT&EAL R
client trust bank balances RPREFRTER 125,929 30,812 54,552 309,400 2,657 14,488 1,347 539,185
Liabilities 8
Finance lease obligation HEREAE - - 114 - - - - 114
Other payables ElERTE 4,396 991 1,366 7,500 - - - 14253
Amounts due to fellow ERRZNBARE
subsidiaries - - - 488 - - - 488
Derivative financial instruments {74 £8TA - 1,460 758 2,449 - - - 4662
Clients' balances RE#S - 10,686 40,224 152,831 133 - - 203,874
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3.2

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 TREREE (&)
Market risk (continued) 3.2 WHEARK (&)
3.2.2 Foreign currency risk (continued) 3.22 SEREE (&)
As at 31 December 2013 R_E—=F+=A=+—H
HKS NZD AUD Ush JPY CNY  Others Total
Sy il AT eI RE  AR% K 5t
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
Tér Thr Thr TEx  TEx  TExr  TEr  TEn
The Group r&E
Assets BE
Other assets AfEE 2636 67 362 2 - - 32 3420
Amounts due from ulimate  ERSKERARFE
holding company - - - 23 - - - 23
Amounts due from fellow EYRZNBLAFE
subsidiaries - - - 75 - - - 75
Derivative financial instruments {74 2R T A - 21,323 6,207 29,064 - - - 56,5%4
Balances due from agents EURELER 1 6 33 15809 165 - 56 16910
Cash and bank balances and B2 RBTEBIRLE
client trust bank balances PRI 14196 22511 35806 264,076 4439 475 14587 483,880
Liabilities af
Finance lease obligation BEREHE - - 171 - - - - 171
Other payables HiERTE 3,029 1,307 489 5447 - - 6 10278
Amounts due to fellow ERFZNBARE
subsidiaries - - - 312 - - - 312
Derivative financial instruments  §744 BT A - 1801 100 678 - - - 2579
Clients balances EPka - 12983 22586 133,706 151 - - 169,426
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2

3.3

3

TRERER (&)

Market risk (continued) 3.2 TmWiEAk (&)
3.2.2 Foreign currency risk (continued) 3.2.2 JERE (&)
The following table indicates the impact TRINRRZ-ZZE—HFERZ
on the Group’s profit before taxation to E—=F+=_A=+—8%
movements in foreign exchange rate as at e P& % B 3 7N &= B BR B Al
31 December 2014 and 2013: B E
Movement
in foreign
currency 2014 2013
Foreign currency risk S BE L ez IERE —EB-—NmE —T—=
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FABT
AUD RIT +/-5% +/-1,223 +/-954
JPY H +/-5% +/-155 +/-222
NZD Eisl +/-56% +/-1,749 +/-1,391
CNY AR¥E +/-5% +/-822 +/-24
Liquidity risk 3.3 REMEE

The Group’s operations are subject to various
statutory liquidity requirements as prescribed
by the relevant authorities. The Group has put
in place a monitoring system to ensure that it
maintains adequate liquid capital to fund its
business commitments and to comply with the
regulatory requirements. The liquidity risk of the
Group is managed by regularly monitoring current
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that
it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and current
working capital to meet its liquidity requirements
in the short and longer term. The Group holds
sufficient cash and deposits on demand to repay
its liabilities.

AEENEHEREERBRENS
BEAERBDEEERMR - AEH
ERVEERS  BEERTHE
MEBES RAREMNRBAERME
B RETERER - AKEE
BEMEZARNLBERRDESR
RKERERBIERR - BENEE
HBRANRSHERENZESR
ENmEREHRLRRDHESE
Ko AEERARRNEAS MEH

FREELEE-
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3.3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 TRERERE (&)
Liquidity risk (continued) 3.3 H"EHERAR (&)
3.3.1 Undiscounted cash flows by contractual 3.3.1 BEXFEHHEZHAME
maturities BEmE
The table below presents the cash flows THREINAEBR _ZF—Y
payable by the Group under financial ER-_T—=F+—"A=+
liabilities by remaining contractual maturities —HRBRTEAIHBERE
as at 31 December 2014 and 2013. The BMEEETHREMNE SR
amounts disclosed in the table are the o RZRAPEENSEAS
contractual undiscounted cash flows. HARMRBESRE -
As at 31 December 2014 R-ZE—NFE+=-A=+—H
Up to 1-3 3-12 1-5 Over
1month  months months years  Syears Indefinite Total
-BAk -2=fif ZEt-@R -28E BIE  ERHY @
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
TR TEn TEn  TExr  FEn TR TEx
The Group r&E
Liabilities B
Finance lease obligation RAMEAE 4 9 34 73 - - 120
Other payables EthEfzE 11,759 1,020 1,474 - - - 14,253
Amount due to fellow ERRZNBARE
subsidiaries 488 - - - - - 488
Clients’ balances KPR 203,874 - - - - - 208,874
216,125 1,029 1,508 73 - - 218,73
Derivative financial instruments {7428 TE 4,662 - - - - - 4,662
220,787 1,029 1,508 73 - - 223,307




3

3.3

ANNUAL REPORT 2014 & —U4E4E#H

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Pz 20y
o A S ik I
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 SREAMRER (&)
Liquidity risk (continued) 3.3 HEHERAR (&)
3.3.1 Undiscounted cash flows by contractual 3.3.1 BEXFHHEZHABE
maturities (continued) BLmE (&)
As at 31 December 2013 R-_E—=%+_HA=+—H
Upto 1-3 312 1-5 QOver
Tmonth  months months years  Syears  Indefinite Total
—fAR —-Z=fR zEt-fiA -21f BRF  ERH st
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000
TEn TR TEn TEn  Thn Thr  TEx
The Group -
Liabilities 8f
Finance lease obligation HAREAR 5 9 42 131 - - 187
Qther payables Hit e 7,663 2,091 534 - - - 10,278
Amaunt due to fellow ENRZHBAE
subsidiaries 312 - - - - - 312
Clients” balances REEH 169,426 - - - - - 169426
1773% 2,100 576 131 - - 180203
Derivative financial instruments $7£4RIA 2579 - - - - - 2579
179975 2,100 576 131 - - 192,782
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.4

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities

3.4.1 Financial instruments measured at fair

value

The following table represents the carrying
value of financial instruments measured
at fair value at the balance sheet date
across the three levels of the fair value
hierarchy defined in HKFRS 7 Financial
Instruments: Disclosures, with the fair value
of each financial instrument categorised
in its entirety based on the lowest level of
input that is significant to that fair value
measurement. The levels are defined as
follows:

Level 1 (highest level): fair values measured
using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets.

Level 2: fair values measured using quoted
price in active markets for similar financial
instruments, or using valuation techniques
in which all significant inputs are directly or
indirectly based on observable market data.

Level 3 (lowest level): fair values measured
using valuation techniques in which any
significant input is not based on observable
market data.

3

TRERER (&)

3.4

StRMEEREBBENANE
3.4.1 BAARBETENZHTA

TREJNNGEER - FEY
BHREENER /T
H:BEIMRENAAE
FMHEN=@EFHF - A
NREAENSBTANK
H{E BEEBTANIA
ERBEZFAZENEER
REFEREERETNERIE
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.4

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities
(continued)

3.4.1 Financial instruments measured at fair
value (continued)

As at 31 December 2014

3

fok o B 5 A M

TRERBER (&)
3.4 SRMEERABNAAE (E)

341 BAABTENZHBITA

(%)
R-ZE—NFE+=-A=+—H

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
1R EPE £33N @t
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
TERT TERT TERT TERT
Assets BE
Derivative financial instruments  #7T44@IT A - 55,544 - 55,544
Liabilities 8
Derivative financial instruments #7428 TE - 4,662 - 4,662
As at 31 December 2013 N-ZE—=F+=-A=+—H
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
R EPR R st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT AT AT
Assets BE
Derivative financial instruments 74 4$ @ T E - 56,594 = 56,594
Liabilities af
Derivative financial instruments {74 4@ T A - 2,579 - 2,579

The fair value of financial instruments
that are not traded in an active market is
determined by using valuation techniques.
These valuation techniques maximise the
use of observable market data where it is
available and rely as little as possible on
entity specific estimates. If all significant
inputs required to fair value an instrument
are observable, the instrument is included
in level 2.

VIR ERTSEE Z SR
TR HAAERBEER
MEE - ZF[RERMED
AR ERH A BE M5 R
% - WEARETIKE R B
EfhE o MR AR EHE—
HTAMBHNE2HER2H
YR BRES  AIZATA
SFIAF 2R o
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.4 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities

(continued)

3.4.1

3.4.2

Financial instruments measured at fair
value (continued)

The fair value of forward foreign exchange
contracts is determined using forward
exchange rates at the end of the reporting
period, with the resulting value discounted
back to present value.

There have been no significant transfers
between level 1, level 2 and level 3 for the
year ended 31 December 2014 and 2013.

Financial assets and liabilities not
measured at fair value

As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, the fair
value of the Group’s financial assets and
liabilities not measured at fair value are
not materially different from their carrying
amounts due to their short maturities.

Balances due from agents and other
receivables include the contractual amounts
for settlement of trades other obligations
due to the Group.

Clients’ balances represent the margin
deposits received from clients for their
trading activities under normal course
of business. Their carrying values are a
reasonable approximation of fair value.

3

TRRERER (&8)
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3.4

3.4.1
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3 SEEAREE (&)

3.4 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities 34 SRMEERABHNARME(E)
(continued)
3.4.3 Offsetting financial assets and financial 343 HHtHEEREHERE
liabilities
(a)  Financial assets (a) ZHEE
The following financial assets are NTe@REEXE
subject to offsetting, enforceable 85 - ISR BIENITAE —
master netting arrangements and FRREE L HE B
similar agreements. AR o
As at 31 December 2014 R=-Z-NFE+=A
=+—H
Related amounts not set
off in the balance sheet
TRHREESRREH
WEBTE
Gross
amounts of Net
recognized amounts
financial ~ of financial
Gross liabilities assets
amounts of setoff  presented
recognised in the in the Cash
financial balance balance Financial collateral Net
assets sheet sheet Instruments received Amount
REEEER HEEERA
BRAE REHCER 251t B
CHEENE CRARLE CREETE SHIE BERAR #E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tén Thn TiEn TEn TEn TEn
Derivative financial  4T4£4BTE
instruments 63,881 (8,337) 55,544 - - 55,544
Total @t 63,881 (8,337) 55,544 - - 55,544
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 TRERERE (&)
3.4 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities 34 SRMEERABHNARME(E)
(continued)
3.4.3 Offsetting financial assets and financial 343 HEcAEERZHARE
liabilities (continued) (%)
(a)  Financial assets (continued) (a) EHEE (&)
As at 31 December 2013 R—_E—=%+=-A
=+-#8
Related amounts not set
off in the balance shest
TARRNEEBEREH
GohiEl b o
Gross
amounts of Net
recognized amounts
financial  of financial
Gross liabilities assets
amounts of setoff  presented
recognised in the in the Cash
financial balance balance Financial collateral Net
assets sheet sheet  Instruments received Amount
REEBER ZEAERA
ERR AEHERD  ME5IR Bl
SRHAELE CHAREE SREETE  SRIE Keffn ik
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TAL TAL THL THL TAL
Derivative financial {7448 TA
instruments 67,549 (10,955) 56,594 - - 56,594
Total @i 67,549 (10,955) 56,504 - - 56,594
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fok o B 5 A M

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 TRERERE (&)
Fair value of financial assets and liabilities 34 SRMEERABHNARME(E)
3.4.3 Offsetting financial assets and financial 343 HEcAEERZHARE
liabilities (continued) (%)
Financial liabilities (b) ZEEE
The following financial liabilities are KTe@aEXE
subject to offsetting, enforceable 85 - ISR BIENITAE —
master netting arrangements and FRREE L HE B
similar agreements. AR o
As at 31 December 2014 R=-Z-NFE+=A
=+—H
Related amounts not set
off in the balance sheet
TRREEREREH
WRERE
Gross
amounts of Net
recognized amounts
financial ~ of financial
Gross liabilities liabilities
amounts of setoff  presented
recognised in the in the Cash
financial balance balance Financial  collateral Net
liabilities sheet sheet Instruments pledged Amount
REEEER EEBERRA
BRA REHCER MR BHEA
tRABEE SRERAE SRAEFE  SRIR REEAR BE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEx FEn TiEn TiEn TiEn TiEn
Derivative financial  $F4£4BIA
instruments (9,576) 4,914 (4,662) - - (4,662)
Total @t (9,576) 4914 (4,662) - - (4,662)
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3
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 TRERERE (&)
3.4 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities 34 SRMEERABHNARME(E)
(continued)
3.4.3 Offsetting financial assets and financial 343 HEcAEERZHARE
liabilities (continued) (%)
(b)  Financial liabilities (continued) (b) ZHEE (E)
As at 31 December 2013 R—_E—=%+=-A
=+-#8
Related amounts not set
off in the balance shest
TAREERBRES
gyl
Gross
amounts of Net
recognized amounts
financial  of financial
Gross liabilities liabilities
amounts of setoff  presented
recognised in the in the Cash
financial balance balance Financial collateral Net
liabilities sheet sheet  Instruments pledged Amount
REEBER ZEAERA
BRER AEHEER Fr2518 BHEA
TRABESE SHBENE SBABEE  SRIE BeEAL ek
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TATL TATL TATL TEL TATL TAL
Derivative financial T4 &8I A
instruments (11,422) 8,843 (2,579) - (2,579)
Total @t (11,422) 8,843 (2,579) - - (2,579)
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.5

3.6

Financial instruments by category

All the financial assets and financial liabilities
(including cash and bank balances, client trust
bank balances, balance due from/to agents, other
assets, amounts due from/to ultimate holding
company, amounts due from/to fellow subsidiaries,
client balances, balances due to banks, other
payables and finance lease obligation) in the
consolidated balance sheets are carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest
method as “loans and receivables” and “other
financial liabilities at amortised cost” except for
the derivative financial instruments and financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss which are

carried at fair value.

Capital management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital,
which is a broader concept than the “equity” on
the face of balance sheet, are:
° To comply with the liquid capital
requirements under the Securities and
Futures Commission in Hong Kong,
Investments
and the

Securities Commission in New Zealand

Australian Securities and
Commission in Australia
for its subsidiaries which are licensed
corporations;

° To safeguard the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern so that it can continue
to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders;

° To support the Group’s stability and growth;
and
o To maintain a strong capital base to support

the development of its business.

fok o B 5 A M

3 SEEAREE (&)

3.5

3.6

BOBENSHMITA

RAEERBRANZHERE
EleRAE (BRASRRITE
7 BFERRITHES B R
NRIEBESS  HMEE - Bl &
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RN A B R MW RIR ]
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B ERAAREBEARNITES R
TEARRARBHABRENERE
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ErER
AEEER (BRBREERERN
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BHEREEREZE S R
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3

112

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 SRIEARER (&)
3.6 Capital management (continued) 3.6 EXE®E (£F)
The Group’s gearing ratio at the balance sheet REERGEEANEFELEDT ¢
date is shown below:
2014 2013
—E-mE —E=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Total debt 4B (5T 602 483
Total equity EmBE 392,723 382,099
Gearing ratio BfEtE 0.15% 0.13%
Total debt includes finance lease obligation, B BEEEREEEAE ﬁ&?ﬁ
amounts due to fellow subsidiaries and amounts EE I ENGIE/ NN A NS T <E2d
due to ultimate holding company. NAE]FKIE o
All licensed corporations within the Group complied NEE-—E—NMEER_ZT—=4F |t
with their required liquid capital during the years FE  AKEENREREELAEEE
ended 2014 and 2013. TFTHREBESHTE °
CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4 BEEE AT RHE

JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances.

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the
related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year
are addressed below.

fhat RAE R R BN - XABELRK
HiEA=AER  SEERERRTIHAE
HARREMNSIETAL -

41 EEEITHTTREEBR

AEBES B ARKEL G RBE -
mItEEZ @A RAR D BEE
FRERGERBN - FER T K
FEHEERABZEREHFLE
RFBZEBRERZ 5t R BRI
R XXEER
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

4.1

4.2

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(continued)

(a)

Fair value of share options

The Group determines the fair value of
share options at the date at which they
are granted with reference to the fair value
estimated under a valuation model which
are commonly used in the market. The
assumptions used in computing the fair
value of the share options are subject to
managements’ best estimation. Changes in
assumptions about these assumptions could
affect reported fair value of share options.
Managements use their judgment to make
assumptions that are mainly reference to
the historical data of comparable listed
companies.

More details of the assumptions made are
included in Note 24 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Critical judgements in applying the Group’s

accounting policies

Management of the Group has not come across

any significant areas where critical accounting

judgements are to be made.

BEE

4.1

fok o B 5 A M

BiHEH R M (F)

ERE G RER ()

(a)

4.2

BREZALE

AEERE L BHM2ERE
MZATERZEEEN G
SRR EEEBREZA
RE -AEEREZAAE
PrAZBREAREEEFL
REMGF - RRERREE
Z R BE A g R H B E
FRERnRE - BEEEE
REHE  YEZ2ERELL
B EMREZELEEEL

Bz -

BRAMEHBRR ZEZFHE
FINAR A M R P E24

FE A 5 2 B A BRR B AE
oz E R

AEBERRE R RAEMNE
R EELE2 S HE -
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5 SEGMENT REPORTING

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the Board of
Directors. The Group’s operating businesses are
structured and managed separately according to the
nature of their operations and the services they provide.
Each of the Group’s business segments represents a
strategic business unit that offers services which are
subject to risks and returns that are different from those
of the other business segments. The Board of Directors
considers the business from a geographical and product

perspective.

Summary details of the business segments are as follows:

(a) the margin dealing segments engage in the
provision of leveraged foreign exchange and other
trading services in Hong Kong and New Zealand;

(b)  the unleveraged cash dealing segment engages in
the provision of non-leveraged foreign exchange
trading services in New Zealand. Unleveraged
cash dealing services were provided to corporate
clients, in particular, those clients engaged in
money changing business for the purpose
of hedging their cash positions and meeting
settlement obligations. The Group is rewarded by
the spread between the price quoted to our clients
and the price offered by our market makers; and

(c) the investment sales segments engage in provision
of sale and marketing functions to clients in New

Zealand and Australia.

Inter-segment transactions, if any, are conducted with
reference to the prices charged to third parties and there
was no change in the basis during the years ended 31

December 2014 and 2013.
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SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 5 DEEmE (F)
The segment information provided to the management HE_Z—NEFR_ZT—=F+=-A=+
for the reportable segments for the years ended 31 —HIEFE  pamE s HRERERE
December 2014 and 2013 is as follows: WO ERERAT
For the year ended 31 December 2014 BE-Z—NFE+-A=1+—HLEE
New New New
Zealand  Hong Kong Zealand Zealand  Australia
Margin Margin Cash  Investment  Investment
dealing dealing dealing sales sales Unallocated  Elimination Total
G BA AER HER -yl
REERE REERSG  BERE  REHE  REHE RAR B gt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$:000
TiEn THR TEn TiEn ThER TEn TiEn ThR
Segment revenue and other S BREREMKA -
income:
Foreign exchange and other  RENMSESHMNER
trading income earned from  Ef R ZMA
external customers 144,214 U} 16,636 - - - - 160,843
Inter-segment sales PHFEE - 45,657 - 6,687 16,311 - (68,655) -
Segment revenue DG 144,214 45,650 16,636 6,687 16,311 - (68,655) 160,843
Other income Al A 21,287 - 46 55 306 6,147 - 21,791
Total revenue and other ~~ WEREMNAZE
income 165,451 45,650 16,682 6,742 16,617 6,147 (68,655) 188,634
Segment profitf(loss) AEER /(BB 30,205 38,914 15,516 (1,575) 11,824 6,147 101,121
Other staff costs EBETHA (19,552)
Other unallocated ERARAIRR
administrative and BERY
operating expenses (33,872)
Profit before tax BB AAR] 47,697
Income tax expense FERAR (12,616)
Profit for the year ERR 35,081
Other segment information: ~ A ZER: :
Depreciation and amortisation 7% &3 115 264 57 161 133 2,408 3,138
Finance cost BARA 18 - - - 2 - 20
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5

116

SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 5 DEEmE (F)
For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE_ZT—=F+"A=1+—HIFE
New New New
Zealand  Hong Kong Zealand Zealand Australia
Margin Margin Cash  Investment  Investment
dealing dealing dealing sales sales  Unallocated  Elimination Total
GGl Bk il i i
REERS REERH  RERH  REME  RENE AR Eaf i Bt
HK$000  HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000  HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000  HK$'000
Th Th Thr ThT Th Thr ThT Thr
Segment revenue and other - AEBMEREMMA -
income:
Foreign exchange and other  RESMIRPHNER
trading income earned from  EfRFHA
external customers 135,549 (6) 11,505 - - - - 147,048
Inter-segment sales PHRHE - 27,069 - 4833 7,104 - (39,006) -
Segment revenue Pl 135,549 27,063 11,505 4833 7,104 - (39,006) 147,048
Other income A 24903 - 108 67 14 4579 - 29,671
Total revenue and other hEREtRALE
income 160,452 27,063 11,613 4,900 7,118 4579 (39,006) 176,719
Segment profit/(oss) APaH /() 52,080 21,309 6,169 (4,058) (4,565) 4579 75,514
Other staff costs ABETHA (17,323)
Other unallocated ABRARTHR
administrative and BERY
operating expenses (8,061)
Profit before tax BEE&R 50,130
Income tax expense FEHER (15,356)
Profit for the year & 34774
Other segment information;:  Efy A2 &H: :
Depreciation and amortisation #7& ;% s 83 319 49 83 471 1545 2,550
Finance cost BERA 100 - 7 - - 16 123
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SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

The Company is domiciled in Hong Kong. The entire
Group’s income from external customers is derived from
its operations in New Zealand.

Ao B S R M

o E®E (&)

ARRENRES - ARERBINEEFH
WA R R E ER AR E T

2014 2013

—F-NEF —T=F

HK$’000 HK$°000

FHET T

New Zealand 4R PE R 160,843 147,048

The locations of its non-current assets (excluding deferred
tax assets) are as follows:

HIRBEE TEEEERBEE) D
gk

2014 2013

—F-mE —F—=F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FERT T

Hong Kong =55 3,651 4,365
New Zealand 4t 7 Bl 6,064 1,579
Australia S 2,430 614
12,145 6,558

None of the external customers contributes more than
10% of the Group’s trading income individually in the
respective years.

Information on segment assets and liabilities are not
disclosed as this information is not presented to the
Board of Directors as they do not assess performance
of reportable segments using information on assets and
liabilities.

MEINFEFPEFERFEAEER S
ARI10% LA E ©

MR EERTREAANEERABENE
FRMETRE S BORE - HEHERNL
BERTEFE  EmLEHEE RS
BERABOER -
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R S B o
OTHER INCOME 6 Hal A
2014 2013
—E-ImF —=—=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Provision of management services REEERS
(Note 27(a)(i)) (Hiat27(a)(i)) 2,019 2,508
Fees and commission income A &Ee A 23,686 26,499
Interest income A EWA 1,811 1,525
Exchange gain/(losses), net PE N Wz (E518) - JFEE 22 (1,371)
Gain on disposal of fixed assets I B E & E R W - 19
Others Efb 253 491
27,791 29,671
STAFF COSTS 7 BT RA
2014 2013
—E—0F —E—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT FHET
Staff costs (including directors’ 8 T (B 15E FH
remuneration (Note 25)): (Ht725)) :
Salaries and allowances T& K #EBL 31,300 29,978
Pension scheme contributions BIRESETEIHE 906 841
Staff option expenses (Note 24) BTERERS (Hid24) 4,339 -
36,545 30,819
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ADMINISTRATIVE AND OTHER OPERATING 8 THREMKEREX
EXPENSES

2014 2013
—E-NmF —E—=F
HK$’°000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Management fees paid to ultimate X THREZERAGNERE
holding company (Note 27(a)(ii)) (K1zt27(a)(ii)) 799 661
Management fees paid to fellow SHFRAMBARMNERE
subsidiaries (Note 27(a)(ii)) (Htaz27(a)ii) 361 328
Other office occupation expenses B EHEARS 1,619 1,618
Auditor’s remuneration 2% E Al B <& 2,648 2,150
Information services expenses AR X 3,024 3,251
Professional and consultancy fee BHENZAE 8,656 8,109
Repair and maintenance wIE R HE
(including system maintenance) (BERGHEE) 698 598
Marketing, advertising and promotion  THiEH#E - BEREERS
expenses 7,807 4,424
Travelling expenses EIRE 2,892 2,412
Entertainment expenses RIRENE 1,089 1,009
Insurance R BR 653 541
Others HAh 3,399 4,355
33,645 29,456
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120

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of
16.5% on the estimated assessable profit during the year.
Taxation on overseas profits has been calculated on the
estimated assessable profit during the year at the rates
of taxation prevailing in the countries in which the Group
operates. The income tax expenses of the Group are

9  FBHAX

BB RS TR E N K fl 51 FE R B4 4 T LA
16.5% M B KEH R B - B INEF M FLIE
ERAFEGHTERTEFUAEBLEE
FIEBRBITHRETE -
R - AN B AR R RORIMN A PR S R
5 BiR28% NM30% KT R+ H o

charged at a tax rate of 28% in New Zealand and 30%
in Australia in accordance with the local tax authorities.

RIRE 1

2014 2013
—E-ImF —ET—=%
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT FET
Current tax: BNEARRIE :
Charge for the year FEHBR 12,947 15,412
Over-provision in prior year EFREEME (20) (30)
Others HAith 301 -
Deferred tax: REFIA ¢
Charge for the year (Note 19) FEM (KzE19) (612) (26)
Income tax expense Frsfim < 12,616 15,356
2014 2013
—E-mF =F—=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Profit before income tax M TS 55 Bz A 47,697 50,130
Tax at the Hong Kong statutory tax rate 1REB AT R ERBIE 7,870 8,271
Effect of different taxation rates in HEMBRTRAMRENTE
other countries 3,464 5,835
Income not subject to tax AR B (16,164) (17,883)
Expenses not deductible for tax TANFF X 16,243 19,131
Temporary differences not recognised  RIERE T |E =58 1,217 32
Utilization of previously unrecognised  EhA4E BT AR FER BT IE B8
tax losses (295) -
Over-provision in prior year EFEBRE R (20) (30)
Others =) 301 =
Income tax expense Frsfim < 12,616 15,356




10

ANNUAL REPORT 2014 —Z&— 44

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DIVIDENDS

On 21 May 2013 and 3 June 2013, the Company declared
a special dividend of HK$1 and HK$0.6 per ordinary share
based on the outstanding shares at the respective dates
of the shareholders meetings. The total special dividends
of HK$16,000,000 were paid to the then shareholders out
of share premium.

The Board of the Company resolved to declare a third
quarterly dividend of HK0.675 cents per ordinary share
in 2013. A total of HK$13,500,000 was paid to the then
shareholders.

On 5 May 2014, a final dividend in respect of the year
ended 31 December 2013 of HKO.5 cents per ordinary
share was approved by the Company’s shareholders.
The dividend of HK$10,000,000 was paid to the then
shareholders of the Company.

On 10 November 2014, the Board approved the
payment of an interim dividend of 2014 of HK0.675
cents per ordinary share, amounting to a total dividend
of HK$13,500,000. The payment was made to the then
shareholders of the Company on 26 November 2014.

A final dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December
2014 of HK1.075 cents per ordinary share, amounting to a
total dividend of HK$21,500,000 is recommended by the
Directors at the meeting of the Board of Directors held on
31 March 2015. These financial statements do not reflect
this dividend payable.

The proposed final dividend for the year ended 31
December 2014 is subject to the approval of the
Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming annual
general meeting to be held on Wednesday, 6 May 2015.

10
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EARNINGS PER SHARE 11 SRER

(a)

Basic earnings per share (a)

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing
the profit attributable to equity holders of the
Company by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares in issue during the year.

BREXEF
BRERBNRANRRBRERE A
RERFRARAERDBITER
BEy ke BEtE -

2014 2013
—Z2—-MmF —E—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Profit attributable to equity RRGIREREB AR =T
holders of the Company 35,081 34,774
Weighted average number B BT E AR ANAE T 15 2

of ordinary shares in issue

2,000,000,000 1,827,857,164

Basic earnings per share BRRERZF (EL)
(HK cents)

1.75 1.90
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EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued) 11

(b)
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Diluted earnings per share

(b)

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is
based on the profit for the year attributable to

equity holders of the Company. The weighted

average number of ordinary shares used in the

calculation is the number of ordinary shares in
issue during the year and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares assumed to have

been issued at no consideration on the deemed

exercise or conversion of all dilutive potential
ordinary shares under the share option scheme

into ordinary shares.

Ao B S R M

BREFN (&)

SREERR

BRETRNDRBEFAARR AR
BBA ARGRFE - BEtE
ERBRNEFABRSFRA LD ET
EAEREA - N ERRERIEER
AT BIRR BIT R B RPA A
BEENBELTAR AT BEMm A
WREZERTHE BB INEFSE -

2014 2013
—E-MF —E—=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHTT
Profit attributable to equity KA EIRER B AR T
holders of the Company 35,081 34,774

Weighted average number
of ordinary shares in issue
Adjustments for share options

BT E BRI F a8

AR

2,000,000,000 1,827,857,164
4,798,894 =

Weighted average number
of shares for the purpose of
calculating diluted earnings
per share

SAEERESR AN
HIHE 15 81

2,004,798,894 1,827,857,164

Diluted earnings per share
(HK cents)

sr#EERN G&l)

1.75 1.90
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=4 ENY
o A B R R I RE
12 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 12 Y% BERRKE
Furniture,
fixtures and  Computer Leasehold Motor
equipment  equipment improvements vehicles Total
HE
RERFE BB HEHE AE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THL THT THL THL
As at 1 January 2013 R-Z—=%—F—H
Cost 3% 8,285 9,065 8,631 2,420 28,401
Accumulated depreciation 25 E (6,975) (8,298) (5,731) (1,503) (22,507)
Net carrying amount REFE 1,310 767 2,900 917 5,894
For the year ended HE-_ZT=F
31 December 2013 TZA=T—ALEE
Opening net carrying amount  EH8REF(E 1,310 767 2,900 917 5,894
Exchange adjustments [ 5 5= (12) (10) (19) (32) (73)
Additions NE 740 994 231 946 2,911
Depreciation neE (502) (422) (1,192) (315) (2,431)
Closing net carrying amount  FEREEEE 1,536 1,329 1,920 1,516 6,301
N_E—=F
As at 31 December 2013 +-A=1+—H
Cost XA 8,577 9,366 8,484 3,061 29,488
Accumulated depreciation e (7,041) (8,037) (6,564) (1,545) (23,187)
Net carrying amount REFE 1,536 1,329 1,920 1,516 6,301
For the year ended HEZZ -5
31 December 2014 TZA=T—-BILEE
Opening net carrying amount  FHREFE 1,536 1,329 1,920 1,516 6,301
Exchange adjustments i 5 R (29) 9 4 (37) (53)
Additions NE 456 1,665 1,285 - 3,406
Depreciation e (537) (715) (943) (397) (2,592)
Closing net carrying amount ~ EXREEEE 1,426 2,288 2,266 1,082 7,062
As at 31 December 2014 RZT—F
+=ZA=+—-A
Cost 5% 8,632 10,620 9,330 2,937 31,519
Accumulated depreciation R E (7,206) (8,332) (7,064) (1,855) (24,457)
Net carrying amount REFE 1,426 2,288 2,266 1,082 7,062
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS

13 EREE

Computer
software
E e
HK$’000
FAET
As at 1 January 2013 RZE—=F—H—H
Cost [DFN 6,636
Accumulated amortisation 2 0 30 (6,307)
Net carrying amount AREDFE 329
For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE—_Z—=F+_A=+—HIL&FE
Opening net carrying amount FHRREFE 329
Exchange adjustments bE 4, 38 B 1
Additions NE 46
Amortisation i (119)
Closing net carrying amount FREEFE 257
As at 31 December 2013 R-B—=F+_"_FA=+—H
Cost B 6,522
Accumulated amortisation RET 5 (6,265)
Net carrying amount BREFE 257
For the year ended 31 December 2014 BE-Z-—NFE+-_A=+—HILFE
Opening net carrying amount FHREFE 257
Exchange adjustments HE 5, e B 22
Additions NE 5,350
Amortisation B (546)
Closing net carrying amount FREEFE 5,083
As at 31 December 2014 RZE-—NFE+-A=+—H
Cost AR 11,610
Accumulated amortisation Rt (6,527)
Net carrying amount REFE 5,083
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14

15

126

OTHER ASSETS AND PREPAYMENTS 14 HMMWEERBAMNER
2014 2013
—E-mE —F—=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHIT
Rental, utility and other receivables e - DR & H AR EIE 2,817 3,167
Prepayments TEfT IR 1,321 1,553
Others Hib 2,452 253
Total 4z 6,590 4,973
The carrying amounts of the Group’s other assets AEBHEMEENEEEREE AR EMN
approximate to their fair values. H o
DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 15 fTE£€mI A
2014 2013
—E—NF ==
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHIT
Current assets REEE
Derivative foreign exchange contracts T4 SMNES %) 55,544 56,594
Current liabilities REBEE
Derivative foreign exchange contracts T4 IMNES %) (4,662) (2,579)
Total G 50,882 54,015

The Group has trades in foreign currencies through its
foreign currency margin trading business. In order to
protect against exchange rate movements, the Group has
entered into a number of foreign exchange and forward
transactions with the Group’s bankers to manage its net
foreign currency exposure.

The notional principal amounts of the outstanding forward
foreign exchange contracts at 31 December 2014 and
2013 are HK$2,458,651,000 and HK$2,584,207,000
respectively.

REBFEBEINERBE SR HEBHEITI
BRXH RREASETXEXRRBF
2 ANEBHEAEARRITIZZEINER
R S AEREINE R FE o

RZE—WEFR_ZE—=F+=ZfF=
+—H BAFREERBAIIEEHNMNE
£ A% 55 5 A2458,651,0008 T K&
2,584,207,000/8 7L °
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Ao B S R M

BALANCES DUE FROM AGENTS 16 EWAREER
2014 2013
—E-mF == =
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FABTT
Balances due from: JFEW A R
— securities agents —HmHRE 12,099 16,910
The carrying amounts of the Group’s balances due from REEEKRBESNRAEEEARE
agents approximate to their fair values. The balances E - ERREEHRBRSEE - REKA
due from agents are current in nature and ageing within 30RARA °
30 days.
CASH AND BANK BALANCES AND CLIENT 17 BERBRITEKRUREFETLRITE

TRUST BANK BALANCES

5

2014 2013

=k —F=F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FEx FET

Cash and bank balances e RIBITER 318,649 201,926
Fixed deposits with banks RITEHITFR 70,570 157,046
Client trust bank balances REEFHRITES 149,966 124,908
539,185 483,880

The Group maintains trust and segregated accounts with
authorised financial institutions to hold clients’ deposits
arising from normal business transactions. The Group
is not allowed to use the clients’ monies to settle its
own obligations in the ordinary course of business,
and therefore they are not included as cash and cash
equivalents in the statement of cash flows.

As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, fixed deposits of
HK$45,497,000 and HK$45,101,000 respectively are
pledged to banks for banking facilities. No overdraft
facility was utilised by the Group as at 31 December 2014
and 2013. No bank deposits are collateral deposits by
the Group placed with market makers as at 31 December
2014 (2013: HK$3,196,000).

AEBNERESREBRHEEEREL
BRP - UREEFPRE —REBRXHNF
Ko REETAPHEFLNERFELES
FRAREEHERTNES - BHZFENR
R EH AR RERTIERE LIRS

RZZE—OFR=ZT—=F+=A=+—
H - 45,497,000% st &45,101,000% J©
MEBTERDIBBITEERB FERT -
RZE—WFR=_E—=F+=A=1+—
B AEERESHATAHEZE RZF
—mWE+=-—A=+—8 " BERTERE
AEERTSHERGFENERER (=2
— =% :3,196,000/87C) °
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17

18

128

S5 i P

CASH AND BANK BALANCES AND CLIENT 17
TRUST BANK BALANCES (continued)

For the purposes of the consolidated cash flow

RERBRITEBRUAREFERRTE

&% (&)

MEARERERME F RERREEE

statements, cash and cash equivalents comprises of the YIBFEATEIE
following:
2014 2013
—ET—-MF —F—=
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
Cash and bank balances e NIRTTA R 318,649 201,926
Fixed deposits with bank with original — RaIR =18 A2 HE
maturity within three months SRITEHITER 25,073 108,749
343,722 310,675
FINANCE LEASE OBLIGATIONS 18 ®EHERE

Lease liabilities are effectively secured as the rights to
the lease asset revert to the lessor in the event of default.

HERBEER L AHEEEEMEN
BEBNFMNE  ZEEMNSERLAE

}\ o
2014 2013
—E-—0mF —E—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Gross finance lease liabilities RMEHESEESE
— minimum lease payments — &EEERK
Not later than 1 year —FRA 47 56
Later than 1 year and no later than —FEEAFAN
5 years 73 131
120 187
Future finance charges on BEHERNRRBERZ
finance leases (6) (16)
Present value of finance lease liabilities RIEHAERGEIREA 114 171
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22 A\ E
o B AR B
FINANCE LEASE OBLIGATIONS (continued) 18 REHEERE (&)
The present value of finance lease liabilities is as follows: MEHEABRENT
2014 2013
—E-mF —F—=
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FAT
Not later than 1 year —FR 41 45
Later than 1 year and no later than —FBEEAFA
5 years 73 126
114 171
The Group leases various vehicles under non-cancellable REBRBAUZHENOBREESHZE LA
finance lease agreements. The lease terms are 3 to 5 ETHEH -HERR=Z1F  MEEFM
years and ownership of the assets lie within the Group. BRGAEEME °
DEFERRED TAXATION 19 IEERIE
The major components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) BERIEEE (BE) NEEDHHAL
recorded in the consolidated balance sheet and the EEEBERA  MREARNEZENT :
movements during the year are as follows:
Other
Employee temporary
benefits Depreciation differences Total
H {th F B
EEER wE MEZE et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT FAT
At 1 January 2013 RZZT—=%
—H—H 109 (182) 329 256
Exchange adjustments PE 7 3 (11) 13 (20) (18)
(Charge)/credit for the year & (%), 5 A 67 20 (61) 26
At 31 December 2013 RZT—=4%
+—A=+—H 165 (149) 248 264
At 1 January 2014 RZZT—MF
—H—H 165 (149) 248 264
Exchange adjustments PE H A% (25) 13 (50) (62)
Credit for the year FAEFA 229 3 380 612
At 31 December 2014 R_ZT—MF
+=ZA=+—H 369 (133) 578 814
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19

130

DEFERRED TAXATION (continued) 19

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset on an
individual entity basis when there is a legal right to set
off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and
when the deferred taxation relates to the same authority.
The following amounts, without taking into consideration
the offsetting of balances within the same tax jurisdiction,
are as follows:

EEBIR (&)

BB R TEREN R A% BT 1R & A S ) A A
HABEE MELEREYRF—#E
B - RIA] R M BlDE A B R FE TR IR & B
BEERE NERBREREERAN S
(W mat R HAEER) FIEAT -

2014 2013
—E-F —T—=%F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FH T FET
Deferred tax assets to be recovered IEEF A& E
after more than twelve months (HBiE12{8 B &4 E) 947 413
Deferred tax liabilities to be settled EERIBEEE
after more than twelve months (EBiB12E A& t) (133) (149)
814 264

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised for the
following:

WERA TS EERDECHABE

2014 2013

—E-MF —T—=%F

HK$’°000 HK$'000

THxT THEIT

Unused tax losses RE)BRIAREE - 975
- 975
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OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES 20 HfttEAREREFEE
2014 2013
—E-MF —_F—=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT FHTT
The Group REE
Accrued rental benefit FETFH 2 Az 295 648
Accruals fEETE 4,707 4,146
Commission payable ENEE 7,385 5,038
Employee entitlements EEREZR 1,862 1,604
Deferred income PEFEY A 1,043 307
Other payables H fth 8 1< R IH 1,866 446
17,158 12,189
2014 2013
—E-mF —T=F
HK$’°000 HK$'000
FHET FET
The Company KA T
Accruals st E A 1,729 1,414
1,729 1,414
The carrying amounts of the Group’s and the Company’s AN 62 [ 2 7R X T ELfh FE R IE A BR [ A B
other payables approximate to their fair values. ERQRERE -
CLIENTS’ BALANCES 21 EF#&tH
The balances represent margin deposits received from REBBRIEN ER XS AR HETERE
clients for their trading activities under normal course FWHMEPHRESFR - REBEEARQ
of business. The carrying amounts approximate to their AERE -

fair values.
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=4 ENY
o A B R R I RE
22 SHARE CAPITAL 22 RA
2014 2013
—E—-0F —T—=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Authorised: JETE ¢
4,000,000,000 ordinary shares of 4,000,000,0008%
HK$0.01 each BRR0.01BTHE B 40,000 40,000
Issued and fully paid: BITREE -
2,000,000,000 ordinary shares of 2,000,000,0008%
HK$0.01 each FAX0.01BTTH E AR 20,000 20,000
The movements in issued share capital were as follows: EEITRAEEHERAT
Number of Issued
shares share
in issue capital
ERITRAE BEITRA
HK$'000
FHET
As at 1 January 2013 R-_ZE—=%F—H—H 10,000,000 100
Capitalisation issue (Note (a)) BRI LT (Hfit(a)) 1,646,655,000 16,467
Placing of new shares (Note (b)) B &SRR (H17E (b)) 343,345,000 3,433
As at 31 December 2013 and RZE—=F+-A=+—BK
31 December 2014 —E—NNE+=_A=+—H 2,000,000,000 20,000
132
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SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

(a) Pursuant to the written resolution passed by
the shareholders on 3 June 2013, the directors
were authorised to allot and issue a total of
1,646,655,000 shares by way of capitalisation of
the sum of HK$16,466,550 standing to the credit
of the share premium account of the Company
by applying such sum in paying up in full at par
1,646,655,000 shares for allotment and issue to the
then shareholders in proportion to their respective
shareholdings.

(b) On 3 July 2013, 343,345,000 shares of HK$0.01
each of the Company were issued at premium at
an issue price of HK$0.452 each by way of the
placing.

CAPITAL RESERVE

The balance represents the difference between the book
value of the net assets of KVB Kunlun New Zealand
Limited, KVB Kunlun Pty Limited and KVB Kunlun
International (HK) Limited over the par value of the
shares issued by LXL Capital Il Limited, LXL Capital Ill
Limited and LXL Capital IV Limited in exchange for these
subsidiaries as if the current group structure had been in
existence since 1 January 2011.

22

23

Ao B S R M

WA (&)

(a) BERENR-_ZT—=%x~A=H
BAMNEMARR EFEEE
1A QAR 9D % (B R /) BR &8
16,466,550 T # 75 & 72N LA B 2 K&
2 17 A& £1,646,655,0000% & 15
FERBZEFRBEARZEERTE
4 #£1,646,655,0000% f% 15 -+ A%
ERRR S B R Ol R S
BERBEITEBARS -

(b) RZZE—=F+tA=H ' ARQAM
fid & 75 4% 0m B B 180.452/8 T /Y
2% 178 ¥ 17343,345,0000% &= & @
E0.01 B TTHIRR D

B f#E

% #5 % #KVB Kunlun New Zealand
Limited * KVB Kunlun Pty Limited & 2 ff#
R (BB BERAREEFENKEE
B XL Capital Il Limited * LXL Capital
[l Limited & LXL Capital IV Limited& A
RBZERBRBAIMBETHRMDOEEZ
FRZER WONRGEERES _T——
F-A—HE—EFE-
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24

134

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 10 January 2014, the Board of Directors of the
Company has granted 40,000,000 share options to 68
individuals for their subscription of new ordinary shares
of HK$0.01 per share of the Company.

These share options are exercisable at HK$0.414 per
share, with varying vesting period and validity from the
date of grant. 40 out of 68 of the Grantees are granted
share options which are exercisable for a period of three
years and a vesting period of one year from the date of
grant. 28 remaining Grantees are granted share options
which are exercisable for a period of two years from the
date of grant, with a vesting period of two years from the
date of grant. All of the share options have no vesting
condition. Among the 40,000,000 share options granted,
14,920,000 share options were granted to six Directors
of the Company.

The Group has no legal or constructive obligation to
repurchase or settle the options in cash.

24

fBIR AT &

RZZE—NFE—A+H ARREEELMH
68% /\ﬂxﬂmo 000,00017 B& A% + 1%
#nuﬁﬁzﬁ ETEO 01/%75%*&%
A% o

ZEEREAIZER0414BTHER T
LATTfE - BRI BB RERBEHRA M
AR -8R ER AR HIOLER AR
BRAR=FEHMERNITENERE  FESH
BRI R B —F - R 28R ER
ABEE EL AR HRERTE
MERE  BEHERE B HRT A
FoMEREREHERSBEE 2RERN
40,000,0001p fE ik #EH - RARINEBES
JEFZ14,920,00017 BE B AE o

REEWFEERSETEFNR @EE K
EEEARE -



ANNUAL REPORT 2014 —Z&— 44

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao B S R M

24

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

24 BBREZTE (&)

Movements in the number of share options outstanding MARITE RS R ZE T
are as follows:
Outstanding Granted Forfeited Outstanding
at beginning during during at end of Exercise Exercise
Grantee Date of grant of the period the period the period the period price period
ERA BB REMERTE REBRE  REERRN  RERERTRE ﬁﬁ% TR
HK
BT
Liu Stefan 10 January 2014 - 9,520,000 - 9,520,000 0.414 10 January 2015 to
\ 9 January 2018
Birsk “2-ME-A1H “E-E-ATRE
“E-\§-ANA
Ng Chee Hung Frederick 10 January 2014 - 4,000,000 - 4,000,000 0.414 10 January 2015 to
9 January 2018
RIEE “2-ME-A1E ZE-DE-ATRE
“E-\§-AnA
Stephen Gregory McCoy 10 January 2014 - 800,000 - 800,000 0.414 10 January 2015 to
9 January 2018
Stephen Gregory McCoy “2-TE-A+H “5-1%-A1HZ
“E-\§-AnA
Zhao Guixin 10 January 2014 - 200,000 - 200,000 0.414 10 January 2015 to
9 January 2018
el “2-ME-A1H “E-E-ATRE
“E-\§-AnA
Cornelis Jacobus Keyser 10 January 2014 - 200,000 - 200,000 0.414 10 January 2015 to
9 January 2018
Cornelis Jacobus Keyser “E2-TE-A+H “5-1%-ATHZ
“E-\5-AnA
Lin Wenhui 10 January 2014 - 200,000 - 200,000 0.414 10 January 2015 to
. 9 January 2018
%Xﬁ ZE*@¢*HfE :?*ﬁi*ﬂ+5§
ZZ-N\E-ANA
Employees of group 10 January 2014 - 19,290,000 (1,150,000) 18,140,000 0.414 10 January 2015 to
companies 9 January 2018
EEATES “2-ME-ATH “2-Rf-A1RZ
ZZ-N\E-ANA
Employees of group 10 January 2014 - 2,740,000 (470,000) 2,270,000 0.414 10 January 2016 to
companies 9 January 2018
SEAAES “Z-mE-AtH 5 §-RTRE
ZZ-\E-ANA
Consultants 10 January 2014 - 1,200,000 - 1,200,000 0.414 10 January 2015 to
9 January 2018
B “Z-mE-AtH “2-nf-A1RZ
ZZ-\&-ANR
Consultants 10 January 2014 - 1,850,000 (100,000) 1,750,000 0.414 10 January 2016 to
9 January 2018
B “Z-ME-ATA ZE-RTRE
ZZ-\&-ANA
- 40,000,000 (1,720,000) 38,280,000
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136

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The Binomial Option Pricing Model has been used to
estimate the fair value of the options. The variables and
assumptions used in computing the fair value of the share
options are based on the directors’ best estimate. The
value of an option varies with different variables of certain
subjective assumptions. Details of the share options
granted on 10 January 2014 was as follows:

Weighted average share HK$0.1227
option price at the
grant date:
Risk free interest rate: 1.154%
Expected volatility: 42.92%
Expected dividend yield: 1.96%
Expected exercise multiple:  Directors: 2.8x exercise
price

Others: 2.2x exercise
price

The measurement date of the share options was 10
January 2014, being the date of grant of the share
options. The expected dividend vyield is determined
with reference to historical dividend payment history of
comparable listed companies up to the measurement
date. The expected volatility of share price is determined
with reference to annualised historical weekly volatility
of comparable listed companies’ share prices as of the
valuation date, as extracted from Bloomberg.

BRETE (7))

—EA R EEBEAERA AL B
MARE - sHEBREDAEMRANER
EBERDERESNREM - BREE
EEXLTIEBERRNEHTRAMEL - R
“Z-EFE-A+TARENBRENFEE
LI

RIFH A B 0.1227%& 7T
TS
FERRAE(E -
i = B I K 1.154%
TEERR IR - 42.92%
TEHAR B X 1.96%

TEHITE R B%  {TEE2.8fF

Hith - {7fE(E2.2f%

BRENAEAHR T -—HF—A+
B BIREBREN B - SEHREXT)
SENALBR T AREEZERHNG
EBREMREEMERE - BRENTEHKIE
SLERBEZENAELR LM AFRE
BEFGERASNFRECAESRKIEME

FE °
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AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S

25 EERSAEEENME

EMOLUMENTS
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) E=EME
Emoluments paid/payable to the directors of the AREBE_TNFR=-F—=
Company by the Group during the years ended 31 FHZA=T—HLEFERARA
December 2014 and 2013. EEN RS
For the year ended 31 December 2014 BE_F-ME+-A=t—HL
FE
Employer’s
Salary contribution Dis-
Director and other to pension cretionary Other
Name of director EEps fee  benefits scheme bonuses  benefits Total
e¢R EXEHRS
Exne HumA  GEMR BERL  HeEd ECHY
HK$°000  HK$°000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TERT TERT TER TEx TERT
Executive Directors: HTES:
Mr. Liu Stefan 2MmAELE 120 365 17 30 240 772
Mr. Ng Chee Hung Frederick ~ RHME%4 120 788 17 66 - 991
Non-executive Directors: FHTES
Mr. Li TR 60 - - - - 60
Mr. Stephen Gregory McCoy  Stephen Gregory
McCoyZt 60 - - - - 60
Independent Non-executive ~ BV EHTES :
Directors:
Ms. Zhao Guixin HEBLT 120 - - - - 120
Mr. Cornelis Jacobus Keyser  Cornelis Jacobus
Keyserft &£ 120 - - - - 120
Mr. Lin Wenhui WIOBEAE 120 - - - - 120
720 1,153 34 96 240 2,243
137



KVB KUNLUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED [ iy [20 [ <& fil 4 B A7 PR A W)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao B 5 A M

25

138

DIRECTORS’
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(a)

Directors’ emoluments (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2013

AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S 25

(a) EBME (&)

EEREREERENME (&)

HE_Z2—=F+_A=+—H81

FE
Employer’s
Salary contribution Dis-
Director and other  to pension cretionary Other
Name of director BEENS fee  benefits scheme  bonuses  benefits Total
Fek  EEXEAK
BE0e  AMREN SHEMF  RERL  ApEd it
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
AT TAL TEr TAr TEx  TER
Executive Directors: YTES:
Mr. Liu Stefan B & 120 374 15 365 240 1,114
Mr. Ng Chee Hung Frederick ~ RiEiR%E 4 120 787 15 393 = 1,315
Non-executive Directors: EHTES
Mr. Li FRE 60 - - - - 60
Mr. Stephen Gregory McCoy ~ Stephen Gregory
McCoy%t & 60 - - 69 - 129
Independent Non-executive ~ BUEHITES
Directors:
Ms. Zhao Guixin HEBLL 120 - - - = 120
Mr. Cornelis Jacobus Keyser  Cornelis Jacobus
Keyserst & 120 = = = = 120
Mr. Lin Wenhui HIER A 120 - - - - 120
720 1,161 30 827 240 2,978

During the years ended 31 December 2014 and
2013, no directors of the Group waived any

emoluments and no emolument was paid to any

of the directors as an inducement to join or upon

joining the Group or as compensation for loss of

office.

BHEZZ-—MNMFER_FT—=F+=A=+
—BIFE  BEAEEEERET M
¢ BAEEUTEINHE FEANES -
1EA DA SR B 3 0 A B A SE B =X 1 A B

B o
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25 DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S 25 EELREREEENEME (&)
EMOLUMENTS (continued)
(b)  Five highest paid individuals (b) EEESHFAL
The five highest paid employees during the years HEZZT—NEER-ZZT—=F+=
ended 31 December 2014 and 2013 included three A=+—HIEFE hisaHE
and one directors respectively, details of whose BENRIBIE=2Kk—RESE ' £
remuneration are set out in Note 25(a) above. © FIEE N £ E25(a) o Bt
Details of the remuneration of the remaining non- EELSHFEEREE_ZT T
directors, highest paid employees during the years FN_FE—=F+-A=+—HIt
ended 31 December 2014 and 2013 are as follows: FENNSEEBEEHL T
2014 2013
—E-lF —E—=fF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FHET FHTT
Salary and commission e ke 1,728 3,708
Employer’s contribution to EERARESFEIMHK
pension scheme 34 144
Discretionary bonuses B IEIEAL 150 676
1,912 4,528
No emoluments have been paid to these individuals HE_TNGFR-FT—=F+=-A="+
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group —HIEFE  BERZEATIAMEE
or as compensation for loss of office during the IR &S [ 3k i A B B 22 B ok 1 5 B B
years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013. wHE o
The emoluments of the highest-paid individuals of REBESHE AT (BEZIN) HEE
the Group other than the directors fall within the R T & ks
following bands:
2014 2013
—E-MmF —_=F—=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Emolument bands B2 )
— HK$0 to HK$1,000,000 — 0%&7c21,000,0008 7T 1 -
— HK$1,000,001 to — 1,000,001 LE
HK$1,500,000 1,500,000/ 7T 1 4
- HK$1,500,001 to — 1,500,001 LE
HK$2,000,000 2,000,000/ 7T - -
- HK$2,000,001 to — 2,000,001 BLE
HK$2,500,000 2,500,000/ 7T - -
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140

INVESTMENT IN A SUBSIDIARY

R—EHEBARZRE

The Company b YN
2014 2013
—E-mE —E=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHBxT T IT
Investment in a subsidiary R—ENBARIZERE
Investments, at cost: & R
Unlisted shares IE E AR (D 5,265 1
Capital contribution relating to BRI RERR
share-based payment WMz EREE 2,844 -
8,109 1

The capital contribution relating to share based payment
relates to options on 23,440,000 shares granted by
the company to employees and directors of subsidiary
undertakings in the Group. Refer to note 24 to the
consolidated financial statements for further details on
the Group’s share option scheme.

BRANRND BERARIN 2 EAFE B
RAAEERASENBEARIEAESE
i /923,440,000 fx 2 IR HEB#E - B
BASEBRETS ZE—PHBELH
RE IR o
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INVESTMENT IN A SUBSIDIARY (continued) 26

As at the date of the report, the Company had direct and
indirect interests in the following subsidiaries:

R—EHMBARZKRE (&)
RREBE - ARBRTIHBRRES

HiEkEEER

Issued share
capital/Particulars

Place of incorporation Principal activities and of issued Equity

Company name and kind of legal entity place of operation share capital interest held
BRITRA/

NREH MR IR EEEREN FEXBREERE ERTRAFE FENRE

LXL Capital | Limited*®’  British Virgin Island, Investment holding, US$200 100%

Limited liability company British Virgin Island (direct)

LXL Capital | Limited™®" ~ HBRZHS  BRAF REAR  RBRIES 200E7T  100% (E#)

KVB Kunlun New Zealand  New Zealand, Provision of leveraged NZ$10,862,083 100%

Limited Limited liability company foreign exchange services, (indirect)

New Zealand
KVB Kunlun New Zealand ~ #7EH + HRAF REERANERY  AEH 10,862,083 FHT  100% (A#%)

Limited
KVB Kunlun Pty Limited
KVB Kunlun Pty Limited
KVB Kunlun International
(HK) Limited
KVB Kunlun International
(HK) Limited
LXL Capital Il Limited™oe !
LXL Capital Il Limited®#?
LXL Capital Il Limited"e® !
LXL Capital Il Limited®7
LXL Capital IV Limited"oe !
LXL Capital IV Limited™#
LXL Capital IX Limited"oe !
LXL Capital IX Limited™#
LXL Capital VIII Limited"e®

LXL Capital VIII Limited®’

Australia,
Limited liability company
BN BRAR

Hong Kong,
Limited liability company

&% BRAA

British Virgin Island,
Limited liability company
RERZES  BRAA

British Virgin Island,
Limited liability company
RERZES  BRAA

British Virgin Island,
Limited liability company
RERZES  BRAA

British Virgin Island,
Limited liability company
RERZES  BRAA

British Virgin Island,
Limited liability company
RERZES  BRAA

Provision of sales service,
Australia
RMEHE RS - BN

Provision of management
services and leveraged
foreign exchange trading
services, Hong Kong

REEERE R
BEANER SRS - BE

Investment holding,
British Virgin Island
REER  ZBELHS

Investment holding,
British Virgin Island
REER  ZBELHS

Investment holding,
British Virgin Island
REER  EBELHS

Investment holding,
British Virgin Island
REER  EBELHS

Investment holding,
British Virgin Island
REER  EBELHS

AU$1,800,010
1,800,010&7T
100,000,000
ordinary shares
100,000,0008%
EEL
US$100
100 7T
US$200
2003%7T
US$100
100 7T
US$100
1005 7T
US$100

100%E7T

100%
(indirect)
100% (FE#)

100%
(indirect)

100% (f&# )

100%
(indirect)
100% (FE#)

100%
(indirect)
100% (FE#)

100%
(indirect)
100% (FE#)

100%
(indirect)
100% (FE#)

100%

(indirect)
100% (FE#)
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27
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INVESTMENT IN A SUBSIDIARY (continued) 26 R—BHBARZRE (&)
Company name Place of incorporation Principal activities and Issued Equity
and kind of legal entity place of operation share capital  Interest held
AR EH EMRCEHREEERERN ETEEBRREEHH ERITRE FENRE
XL Capital V Limited"®”  British Virgin Island, Investment holding, US$100 100%
Limited liability company British Virgin Island (indirect)
LXL Capital V Limited™®’  EBELHES - BBEAH REZR  ZBETES 1007 100% (F#)
Yorkastle Capital Hong Kong, Investment holding, 1,000,000 100%
Limited"ee2 Limited liability company Hong Kong ordinary shares (indirect)
Yorkastle Capital Limited™#2 &% » HR2A A REBR  BE 1,000,0008%  100% (F#)

TRk
Zhuhai Henggin Kunlun People’s Republic of China, Provision of financial services, RMB10,000,000 100%
Financial Exchange Limited liability company People’s Republic of China (indirect)
Limited!ee2

HEREERMER hEARAME - FRAR RUSRARY  FEARLNE AR¥K10,000,000  100% (f#)

RHRLBRAT

Note 1: No audited financial statements have been prepared Bt 1 - R Z 2 Al A Az 4 B2 FE I T A
as these companies are incorporated in a jurisdiction FIETEFEZHE 0BG A 17
which does not have any statutory audit requirements. BIE#Z -

Note 2: The companies are newly incorporated and has no Biit2 : ZF R a B F R MA 7 AR

operation during the current year.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the
ability, directly or indirectly, to control the other party
or exercise significant influence over the other party in

27 BEAIXS

fW—TT BN E R R FEEES S — T HE
MBEREERREH S —HRBEEATE
N ETABAREE €N X HKRENE

making financial and operating decisions. Parties are also IR A Rk o

considered to be related if they are subject to common

control.

For the outstanding balance due from or to related DLEW S E N AR S RGBT 5
parties, net amount is presented when the Group has REBBRESZRGIEEC RS HEE
a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized WHIRFREEEERZ2) S EFME -

amounts, and intends to settle on a net basis.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 27

(a)

The Group and the Company had the following
material transactions and balances with related

parties during the year.

RBEXS (&)

(a) AEERARRNFREREETE
TTBEARR G REHRIT o

The Group AEE
2014 2013
—E-NEF —E—=fF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
i3 FHT FHT
Transactions 5
Management fee income for AT AR HER
the provision of group BB . BHRH -
management, IT, marketing TS HEE R 1T
and administration TEMNESEBIWA
support from: a (i)
— fellow subsidiaries —REMEBRAR] 2,019 2,508
Management fee expense for FATABIREES
the provision of information R TIE - 8175
technology support, financial RS R AL e
system and websites BRAS - TS HEE -
maintenance services, . e
marketing promotion, ig}gﬁiﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ
customer services and BoEEIES
reconciliation to: (if)
— ultimate holding company — ARPERR A A 799 661
— fellow subsidiaries — ARKBAT] 361 328
Amounts paid for the provision [ELL T A & S 24
of software development EERR R R U
and maintenance services, RS« Bkl e
IT infrastructure project THE SRR
TETEGOMENL EME A B ARG
maintenance services and AR 25 -
IT risk assessment el
services to:
— a fellow subsidiary — —RBREKB AR (ifi) 4,865 -
Outstanding balances KREELEEHS
Due from related parties: FE U BAES 5 308 -
— ultimate holding company — AR A F) (v) - 23
— fellow subsidiaries — RAENB AT (viii) - 75
Other assets and prepayments: Hh&E LKIBNZHIE : (Vi)
— travel advances to key —TEEBAENE
management PRE K - 3
Due to related parties: FESTRAES 5 308 - (vii)
— fellow subsidiaries SEELIEAE 488 312
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 27 BAMAEXRB (&)
(a) (continued) (a) (&)
The Company ENS
2014 2013
—F-0F =F—=
Note HK$’000 HK$’'000
ira FHET FHATT

Outstanding balances REBELEER

Due from related parties: JE s B g 5 SRR

— subsidiary — B AT (iv) 64,653 65,907
— ultimate holding company — RIRPERR A A (v) - 12

Due to related parties: FE A< BB 5 50 (vii)

— subsidiaries — B AT 13,901 663

Notes: Htat -

(i) Management fee income is determined with (i) %fg%%}]}%%ﬁ@%%%ﬁ
reference to the cost of provision of group - ﬁﬁﬁﬂ&: 5% 1 R AT
management, IT, marketing and administration B RIRIE EIR A= RETE ©
support services plus mark up.

(ii) Management fee expenses are charged for the (i) ERRBXIRBRAABE
provision of information technology support, X MEEE - FPRER

% . 75 M ik 4 22
marketing, customer services and reconciliation, IR~ BB R A e R
financial system and web sites maintenance HEEELHR MG o
services with reference to the costs incurred.

(iii) Amounts are paid for the provision of software (i) #ﬁﬁﬁ’#ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ\
development and maintenance services, ;ﬁ;ﬁf#f\j{%@lﬁﬁ CE X
IT infrastructure project management and MR R A AL 1502 R 1o AR

=1
maintenance services and IT risk assessment 3 AFH9 7R
services.
(iv) Amounts due from a subsidiary represents (iv) TEA K& 2 AIARITEKVB NZ

intercompany loans with KVB NZ, which are
interest bearing and repayable in accordance with
loan agreements agreed with both parties. The
amounts due from a subsidiary were unsecured,
except for US$6,500,000 (31 December 2013:
US$2,500,000) which is secured by a charge
over the assets of KVB NZ in the form of a general

security agreement entered by both parties.

REIERIE S - Z A HGE
TR IEE T 155 F BB A 3
18 i ° £6,500,000% T (=
E—=ZF+ZA=+—H:
2,500,000% 7T ) # & 7 # 5T H)
—RIER 2 E KVB NZ&
BRI EEBERS - WK
M7/ 2 A4 B B AT o
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 27 BABARS (#&)

(@) (continued) (@ (&)

The Company (continued) ANTE (E)

Notes: (continued) et - (&)

(v)  Amounts due from ultimate holding company are (v)  EUREFER A AR BEL
unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable - BERBLEFIEE -
on demand.

(vi) Travel advances to key management are (vi) BEBEA B E KRB A EE
unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable B B EREARELIE -
on demand.

(vii)  Amounts due to related parties are unsecured, (vii) BB B R AERH - £
non-interest bearing and repayable on demand. BRELESIEE -

(vii)  Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries are (viii)  FEH ] E 8 2 AR S A
unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable - BE - RIZEKER -
on demand.

(b) Key management includes directors (executive (b) AEEFEERE (BEBITRIE
& non-executive) and the remuneration of the MITES) REZEIE A B A O
key management personnel of the Group was as LU
follows:

2014 2013

—E-IF —T—=%F

HK$°000 HK$’000

FERT T

Salary and other benefits e REMEF 1,153 1,161
Employer’s contribution to pension BERIKSFTEIHERK

scheme 34 30

Discretionary bonuses BB IEAL 96 827

Other benefits HAha 960 960

2,243 2,978
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COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 28 AERIAEE
(a) Capital commitments (a) EAEIE
2014 2013
—F-mF =F—=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Contracted but not provided for EEESEESEL - 915
(b) Operating lease commitments (b) REHEHEE
The Group leases offices under non-cancellable AEERBERSFREBHTIH
operating lease commitments existing at the year HECEHEREHRERAE - HE

end. Leases were negotiated for an average term
of 3 to 6 years.

BEH = NFER

The Group is required to give six months notice for REBEBELNEABAGAKIE
termination of these leases. ZEME o

2014 2013

—E-MF —E—=F

HK$°000 HK$'000

FHET FHIT

Within one year —F R 13,839 12,519

One to five years —ERF 46,258 10,070

60,097 22,589
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29 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

1.

On 29 January 2015, the controlling shareholder of
the Group and CITIC Securities Company Limited
(“CITIC Securities”), a company incorporated in the
People’s Republic of China, entered into the share
purchase agreement pursuant to which CITIC
Securities has agreed to acquire 1,200,000,000
shares of the Group, which represented 60%
of the entire issued share capital of the Group
from the controlling shareholder. Completion of
the transaction is subject to the satisfaction of
conditions as stipulated in the share purchase
agreement.

Upon completion, the outstanding share options
granted during 2014 will be subject to cancellation
under an unconditional mandatory cash offer to be
made by CITIC Securities, subject to the conditions
and completion of the share purchase agreement.
Management is in the process of evaluating the
financial impact on the cancellation of the share
options to the Group.

A final dividend in respect of the year ended
31 December 2014 of HK1.075 cents per
ordinary share, amounting to a total dividend of
HK$21,500,000 is recommended at the Board
of Directors meeting on 31 March 2015. The
proposed final dividend for the year ended 31
December 2014 is subject to the approval of the
Company'’s shareholders at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

30 APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorized

for issue by the Board of Directors on 31 March 2015.

Ao B S R M

29 HRER

1.

R-E—RF—A=-+hB ' ' &&
B A AR AR R B AR (S AE S AR 1D B BR
Al ([FELES] —ERPEA
REMBEFEMA LA QR TR
BB B B - REIEFER
= U B81,200,000,000/% 7 £= & f%
D AEAREEEIHE BITRA (R
B ER) BI60% ° :Z R 5 AT
IR 0 B8 B 1 3 € MO E Ak 12 -

RIEm & - N — MR Hm =
RITEMBBREBARIETELESF K
EH BRI EFIR S BN T AT
8 RSB B R BRI R
TERRFAR - B EIEREHBRE
HARKEM B EETE

N_E—RF=ZR=+—HETZ
Exgga L ERERNEBE=_Z—
NE+=—A=+—HILFENRE
B BB E@A%1.0758 1l (4R S
A #21,500,0008 L) c HEZF
—ME+ZA=+—HILFEZ&E
EAHREEAREERRBFAE
EREBANERRE A

30 H#UEMBE®EX

ARBHREIABEFEEN _F—HF=H

T BHE R RETIE
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

S

A summary of the results and of the financial position of KVB L THIIEGBHEemEBRER QA ([AA
Kunlun Financial Group Limited (the “Company”, together with  &]] - BRI AR B A al & [AEE ) 1538 £ M
its subsidiaries, the “Group”) for the last four financial years, {EBfHFEANTIEZ EEE K EARIEBE - Ty
as extracted from the published audited financial statements, #54%E B TS a3 4% 2 B 5% o

is set out below.

For the year ended 31 December

BE+T-A=1+—HLEFE

2014 2013 2012 2011
—E—ME —T—= —T——F —T——%F
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FHExT THET TET T

Total income N 188,634 176,719 123,222 155,242
Profit before tax R B A 52 ) 47,697 50,130 2,432 50,305
Profit/(loss) for the year FRE A (E518) 35,081 34,774 (1,749) 35,555
Total comprehensive income FAE @Y
for the year qazg 29,785 33,010 2,837 33,301
As at 31 December
BR+t=—A=+—H

2014 2013 2012 2011

—B-NF —T-=F —T-——F —T——F

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FHBxT THET FET T IT

Total assets BERE 626,510 569,993 408,006 397,035
Total liabilities BERE (233,787) (187,894) (175,254) (210,211)
392,723 382,099 232,752 186,824

Total equity and liabilities RS EE 626,510 569,993 408,006 397,035
Net current assets MENEEFE 379,837 375,403 226,470 180,930

Total assets less current liabilities @&ER e EE

392,929 382,374 233,131 187,299

Note:

Hiat -

The summary of the financial information of the Group for each of two  A#EEEE —F——F R —FT— —4F+ - H=+—HIF
years ended 31 December 2011 and 2012 have been extracted from the — FEFEE Z B IEEFEE 547 H A H 85— F—
prospectus of the Company dated 11 June 2013. Such summary was =FNA+—HAZHRERE - BEIBEE TR0 EEE
prepared as if the current structure of the Group had been in existence — AFZ81E fr:% Z B B F /& A — B 7 72 AR & °

throughout these financial years.
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